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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To

The CEO Indian Operations,
SBM Bank (Mauritius) Limited Indian Operations

Report on the Financial Statements

1.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SBM Bank (Mauritius) Limited Indian
Operations ("the Bank”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018, the Profit and Loss
Account and the Cash Flow Statement for the period then ended and a summary of significant accounting
policies and notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2.

The Management of the Bank is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Bank in accordance
with the provisions of Section 29 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) specified
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act”), read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 in so far as they apply to the Bank and the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of india and in
conformity with form A and B (revised) of the Third Schedule to the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, as
applicable. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Bank and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies, making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial control, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have
taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are
required to be included in the aydit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Bank's preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

5. in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the financial

statements give the information required by the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 as well as the Companies
Act, 2013, in the manner so required for banking companies and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India of the state of affairs of the Bank as al March
31, 2018, its loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Matters

6. The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account have been drawn up in accordance with the provisions

of Section 29 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

As required sub section (3) of section 30 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and the appointment lefter
dated January 8, 2018, we report that:

(a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
were necessary for the purpose of our audit and have found them to be satisfactory;

(b} The transactions of the Bank, which have come to our notice, have been within the powers of the Bank;
and

(¢} The financial accounting systems of the Bank are centralised and therefore, accounting returns for the
purpose of preparing financial statements are not required to be submitted by branches; we have
visited 3 branches for the purpose of our audit.

Further, as required by section 143(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, we further report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Bank so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2008 (as amended) specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014:

{e) Reporting requirement pursuant to Section 164 (2) of the Companies Act 2013, are not applicable
consldering this is a branch of SBM Bank (Mauritius) Limited:

{f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Bank and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 1” to this report;
and’

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given {o us:
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i. The Bank hae disciosed the impact of pending iitigations on its financial position in its tinancial
statements ~ Refer Schedule 12.1 and Note 24 of Schedule 18 to the financial statements;

ii. The Bank has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for
material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative contracts — Refer Note 25 of
Schedule 18 to the financial statements: and

fi. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Bank. '

For 8. R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

“Saﬂwe,s ‘\ L\Jcﬁ fi‘y.

per Sarvesh Warty

Partner

Membership Number: 121411
Place of Signhature: Mumbai
Date: 27 June 2018
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF SBM BANK (MAURITIUS) LIMITED INDIAN OPERATIONS

Report on the Internai Financial Controls under Clause {i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”) '

To the CEQ Indian Operations — SBM Bank (Mauritius) Limited indian Operations

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of SBM Bank (Mauritius) Limited
Indian Operations ("the Bank®) as of 31 March, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Bank for the period ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for internat Financial Controls

The Bank’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal controf over financial reporting criteria established by the Bank considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Bank's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliabile financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Bank's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Nnancial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and lhe Standaids on
Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with

4
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generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

in our opinion, the Bank has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Bank considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

for 5. R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

5mve§1\ LJav b

per Sarvesh Warty

Partner

Membership Number: 121411
Place of Signhature: Mumbai
Date: 27 June 2018
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{ncorporared in the Republic of Manritius with Limited Lighility)
INDIAN OPERATIONS

Balance Sheet

CAPITAL & LIARILITIES
Lapital

Reserves & Surplus

Peposils

Borrowings

Otlier Liabilities and Provisions
Total

(SIS I

ASSETS
Cash and Baknces with Reserve Banl of India 6
Balances with banks and Money at Calt and Skozt Notice
Investments

Advances

Fixed Assets

Other Assets

Total

—
o o

Contingent Liabitities iz
Bills for Collection

Significant Accounting policies and notes forming part of Financial 18
Statements

The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet,
As per our attached Report of even date.

For S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101049W/E300004

SM*(V(IS\'\ \,J

per Sarvesh Warly
Partner
Membership No. 121411

Place ; Mumbai
Bate: hue 27,2018

Asal Asat

41-Mar-2018 31-Mar-2017
(Amount in "000) {Amount in 000}
4,769,584 4,769,584
{1,003,986) 47,178
12,057,665 12,182,545

1,303,500 -
824,966 608,998
17,951,729 17,608,305
534,832 262,363
1,668,371 4,379,434
4,661,045 4,304,613
10,164,759 7,309,180
305,859 294,584
616,863 1,058,131
17,951,729 17,608,305
23,405,266 11,911,596
2,450,432 1,774,742

For SBM Bank {Mauritius) Ltd.

Mr. 5iby Sebastian
CEQ - Indian Gperations




SBM Banl (Maurities) Lid,
{ncorporated in the Republic of Mauritius with Linited Lisbilit)
INIMAN OPERATIONS

Prafitand Loss Account
31-Mar-2018 $1-Mar-2017
(A i1°000) (A i 000)
L. INCOME

Irterest casrned 13 1,325,812 1,066,640

Other income 14 143.038 115,287

Talal 1,468,550 1,183,927
B EXPENDITURE

lnterest expenided i5 865,008 746,996

Operating expenses 16 284,255 245,192

Provisions & contingencies 17 1,366,637 534,406

Total 2,515,900 1,526,594
1ll. PROFIT/LOSS

Net profit/(less) for the year (1,047,3590) (344,667)

Prafit/(loss) brought forward (B837.052) {492,385}

Total (1,884,402} [837,052)
V. APPROPRIATIONS

Transfer to Statutory Reserves

Transfer to Capital Reserve

Transfer to Investment Fluctuation Reserve

Profit remitted to Head Office - .

Batance carried over Lo Balance Sheet {1.884.402) {837,052)

Total (1,884,402} (837,052)

The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Profit & Loss Account,

As per our attached Report of even date,

For S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For SBM Bank (Mauritiu

Chartered Accountants

_gamfes h U"”b

per Sarvesh Warty
Partner
Membership No, 121411

Mr. Siby Sebastian
CEQ - Indian Operations

Place : Mumbai
Date : june 27, 2018




SBM Bank (Mauritius) bid,

{Incorporated in the Republic of Mauritius with Limited Liability)

INDIAN OPERATIONS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2018

Particulars As at Asat
March 3%, 2018 March 31, 2017

(Amount in 004) {Amountin 0649)
Cash Flow from Operatng Activities
Net Profit after Taxes {1,047,350) (344,667)
Adjusiments 1o profit/{loss) from operations
Loss/(Profit) from Sale of Fixed Assets - .
Depreciation on Fixed Assots 7.331 6,847
Specific Provision for NPA 787,567 476,283
Diminution on Investment 461 6,970
Direct Taxes
Other Provisions - Deffered tax . .
Non-Pevfarming Advanros / Investment writton-off 567,150 129,974
Provision for Standard Advances 12,628 (13,728)
Provision for Country Exposure {1,169) 760
Provision for Diménution in Fair Vaiue of Restructed Accounts . {24,000}
Provision for interest Capitalised on Rostructured Accounts - (41,853)
Sul-Totad 326,618 196,586
Changes in working capital
(Increase)/Decrease in Investments (356,892) 2,691,978
{tcrease)/Decrease in Advances (4.216,296) (1,610,699)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets 382,724 94,768
increase/(Decrease) in Deposits (124,880) 2,476,083
Increase/{Decrease) in Borrowings 1,303,500 (19%,855)
Increase/(Decrease} in Cther Liabilities 2(14,509 [81,345)
Net Cash from Operating Activites before Income Tax (2474,717) 3,667,516
Advance Income tax paid - (44,900)
Refund received from Income Tax 58,543 18,536
Net Cash from Operating Activites after Income Tax (2,416,174) 3,541,152
Cash Flow from Investing Activites
Purcliase of Fixed Assets (22,420) (3,642}
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets - 14
Net Cash from Investing Activites {22,420} (3,628)
Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Increase/(Decrease} in Capital - -
Issue of Subordinated Bond - -
Net Cash from Financing Activities - -

(e

“TURA T
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SBM Bank (Mauritius) Lid.

(tncorporated in the Republic of Mauritius with Limited Liability)

INDIAN OPERATIONS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCIE 2018

Partculars Asal As at
March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
{Amountin "000) (Antount in "000)

D [Cash and Cash Equivalent at the

beginning of the year

L Casls in Hand (including Yoreign Currency Notes and Gold} 3,353 3,109

I Balances with Reserve Bank of [ndia 259,010 293,831

I Balances with Banks and Meney at Call and Short Notice 4379434 807,333

4,641,797 1,104,273

E  [Cash and Cash Equivalent at the

end of the year

. Cash in Hand (including foreign currency notes and gold) 2,696 3,353

11 Baiances with Reserve Bank of India 532,136 259,010

ill Balances with Bank and Money at Call and Short Notice 1,668,371 4,379434

2,203,203 4,641,797

A |Cash Flow from Operatng Activitics (2,416,174) 3,541,152
B [Cash Flow from lavesting Activites {22.420) (3.628)
C  |Cash Flow frem Financing Activities - -

Nel Increase/ (Pecrease) In Cash & Cash Eguivalents (A+B+C) (2,438,594) 3,537,524
¥ |Cash and Cash Eguivalent at the

begininning of the year 4,641,797 1,104,273
E [Cash and Cash Equivalent al the

end of the year (A+B+C+D) 2,203,203 4,641,797

For 5, R, Batliboi & Assoclates LLP
Chartered Accountants
JCAI Firm Registration No.: 101049W/E300004

54 YV’PS\\ Uf’iﬂl.’),

per Sarvesh Warty
Partner
Membership No, 121411

Place : Mumbai
Date : June 27, 2018




SBM Bank (Mauriting) Ltd.
INDIAN OPERATIONS

31-Mar-2018 31-Mar-2017
T in "000) T 000}

SCHEDULE 1.: CAPITAL

Head Office Account
At the beginning of the year 4,769,584 4,769,584

Additions during the year -

Total 1,769,584 4,769,584

Note;
Amount of deposit kept with RBY in the form of approved securities as on 31st March 2018 under section 11 2(h)
of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 Face value Rs 470,000 ('000) (Previous Year Rs 450,600 ('000)).

SCHEDULE 2 ; RESERVES AND SURPLUS

I Statntory Reserve
Opening Balance 359,880 359,880

Additions during the year
Deductions during the year -
Sub Total 359,880 359,880

. Capital Reserve
Opening Balance 58,054 58,054
Additions during the year - -
Deductions during the year - -
Sub Total 58,054 58,054

111, Retained Earnings
Cpening Balance 320,098 320,098
Additions during the year - -
Deductiens during the year - -
Sub Total 320,098 320,098
IV. Revaluation Reserve
Opening Balance 146,198 150,012
Additions during the year - .
Deductions during the year 3,814 3.814
Sul Total 142,384 146,198
V. Balance in Profit and Loss Account
Opening Balance [837,052) (492,385)
Less Appropriations - -
Add profit/(loss) for the year brought frons the Profit and loss account (1.047,350) [344,667)
Sub Total (1,884,402) (837,052}

Total (I+II+IE+V+V ) [1,803,986) 47,178




SBM Bank (Mauritius) Lid.

INDIAN OPERATIONS

Schedules forming parkofthe Balance Sheet

Al

Demand Deposits
(i) Trom Banks
{iiy From Others

AL

Savings Bank Deposits
AJH. Term Deposits

(i} Trom Banks

{ii} From Others

Total

B.L. Deposlts of branches in India
B.IL. Deposits of branches outside India

Total

SCHEDULE 4 ; BORROWINGS

I. Borrowings in India
i} Reserve Bank of India
{i) Other Banks
iii) Other Institutions and Agencies
Sub Total

H. Borrowings outside India
Total (I +1I)

Secured Borrowings included in 1 & Ii above

. Bills Payable
1l Interest Accrued
{1l. Deferred Tax Liability (Net)
V. Provision for Standard Advances
V. Others (including Provisions}

Tatal
SCHEDULE 6.; CASH AND BALANCES WITH R}

. Cash in Hand
(including Foreign Currency Notes - NiL)

. Balances with Reserve Bank of India
in Current Account
in Other Accounts

Total

23,771 32,804
825,126 1,952,647
475,902 656,023

10,245 9,774

10,722,621 9,531,297
12,057,665 12,182,545
12,057,665 12,182,545
12,057,665 12,182,545
1,303,500 -
1,303,500 -
1,586 2,363
638,555 498,303

44,500 31,872

140,325 76,460

824,966 608,998

2,696 3,353
532,136 259,010
534 832 262,363
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.

INDIAN OPERATIONS

Schedules forming part of the Balance Shieet

L tnlndia
i) Balances with Banks in
{a) Current Accosnts
(1) Mher NDeposit Accounts
it) Money at Call and Short Notice
{a) with Hanks
{h) witl: Gther [nstitutions

Sub Total

I, Qutside India
i} in Current Accounts
i) i Other Deposit Accounts
ifi) in Money at €all and Short Notice

Sul Total
Total {1&11)

L. Investments in India in
i) Government Securities
ii} Other Approved Securities
iif) Shares
iv) Debentures and Bonds
v) Subsidiaries and /or Joint Venture
vi} Others (CD, CP & SR)
Sub Total
Less: Provision for Diminution
Sub Total

H. Investments outside India
Total {1&11)
SCHEDULE 9: ADVANCES
A i} Bills Purchased and Discounted
it) Cash Credits, Overdrafts and Loans repayable on Demand
iii) Term loans
Total
B i) Secured by Tangible Assets {includes Advances against Boolk Delits)
if) Covered by Bank / Government Guarantees (includes Advances
against Stand-By Letter of Credit)

iii} Unsecured

Total

[

Advances in India
i) Priority Sectors
i) Public Sector
iti} Banks

iv) Others

Total
11 Advances outside India

otal (CI & CIi)

31-Mar-2017
(Ampuntin 000}

5,075 10,338
1,430,000 1,280,000
1,435,075 1,290,338
135,533 2,181,196

" 259,400

97,763 648,500
233,296 3,089,096

1,668,371 4379434

3,607,886 1,947,243
6,970 6,970
630,795 1,333,029
422,826 1,024,341
4,668,477 4,311,583
7,432 6,970

4,661,045 4,304,613

4,661,045 4,304,613
1,296,713 140,087
2,496,624 2,427,436
6,371,422 4,741,657

10,164,759 7,309,180 _
8,201,769 6,447,264
1,440,284 68,642

522,706 793,274
10,164,759 7,309,180
1,328,458 3,121,406
1,794,520 .
7,041,781 4,187,774
10,164,759 7,309,180
10,164,759 7,309,180
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INDIAN OPERATIONS

S“hl‘d”lcf E'!":n]t“w.".l. u" ”IQ IJ.”!" e :*h get
A in "000) .

SCHE [ !
[. Premises

At cost at beginning of the year 390,006 390,006

Additions during the year - -

Deductions during the year - .

Depreciation to date 138,035 131,291

Sub Total 251971 258,715

IL. Other Fixed Assets (including Furniture & Pixtures)

At cost at beginning of the year 95,751 100,817
Additions during the year 11,051 370
Deductions during the year - 5,436
Depreciation to date 91,605 87,204
Sub Total 15,197 8,547

[l Capital Work in Progress 38,691 27,322
Total ({, 1L & 1) 305,859 294,584
SCHEDULE 11.; O'THER ASSETS

1. Inter-Office Adjustment {Net) . -

[l Interest Accrued 87,461 112,045
IIL Tax paid in Advance / Tax Deducted at Sources (Net of Provisions) 111,215 169,757
[V. Deferred Tax Assets (Net) - -

V. Stationery and Stamps i4 16
V1L Others 418,173 776,313

Total 616,863 1,058,131
SCHEDULE 12 : CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
L. Claims against the Bank notacknowiedged as Debts 85,653 81,143

il. Liability for Partly Paid Investments - -
Il%. Liability on account of cutstanding Forward Exchange Contracts & Derivatives 19,713,655 9,831,686
[V. Guarantees given on behalf of Constituents

&) In India 10,428 11,504
b) Outside india 1,116,655 33,856

V. Acceptances, Endorsements and Other Obligation 1,082,318 670,100

V1. Other items for which the Bank is Contingently Liable 1,396,557 1,282,907

Total 23,405,266 11,911,596




SBM Bank (Mauriting) Ltd.

INDIAN OPERATIONS

Year Ended Year Ended
31-Mar-2018 31-Mar-2017
(A in *000) (A Lin '000)
SCHEDULE 13 INTEREST EARNED
I Interest / Discount on Advances / Bills 823,879 451,837
[ teome on Investments 353,847 460,547
I, Interest on Balances with RB] and Other Inter-Bank Funds 112,694 64,878
IV, Others® 35,092 89,378
Total 1325512 1,066,644
*includes Swap Gain on Funding Swaps
L. Commission, Exchange and Brokerage 30,271 24,616
Il Profit/{loss) on sale of investments 34,312 36,516
{1 Profit/{{oss) on Revaluation of [nvestments - -
IV. Profit/(loss) on sale of Land Building & Other Assets - -
V. Profit on Exchange Transactions 31,526 33.020
V8. Income earned by way of Dividends etc, from Companies and / or - -
foint Ventures in India & Aboard
VI Miscellanecus Income 46,929 20,535
Tatal 143,038 115287
1. luterest an Deposits 743,298 591,729
Il interest on Reserve Bank of India /Inter Bank Borrowings 14,780 1,456
Il. Others* 106,930 153,811
Tatal 865,008 746,996
*includes Swap Cost on Funding Swaps
SCHEDULE 16 ; OPERATING EXPENSES
L. Payments to and Provision for Employees 139,962 87,706
II. Rent, Taxes and Lighting 7,302 8,832
[ Printing and Stationery 1,093 928
1V, Advertisement and Publicity 1,488 244
V. Depreciation on Bank's Property 7,331 6,847
V1. Auditors’ Fee 3,000 3,003
VI Law charges (incl.Professional Fees) 16,356 12,097
Vi, Postages, Telegrams, Telephones, etc, 4,837 3.510
{X. Repairs and Maintenance 6,252 7,487
X Insurance 16,336 11,123
XI. Other Expenditure (refer to Schedule 18, Note 54) 80,298 103,358
Totat 284,255 245,192
SCHEDULE17; PROVISIONS & CONTINGENCIES
L. Provision for Non-Performing Advances 787,567 476,283
[l Floating Provision on Advances - -
11I. Provisien fer Depreciation on Investments 461 6,970
V. Provision for income Tax - .

V. Provision for Deferred Tax - -
VI. Nen performing Advances written-off 567,150 129,974
V1l Provision on Standard Advances 12,628 {13,728)
VI Provision for Country Risk Exposure (1,169) 760
IX. Diminution in Fair Value of Restructured Accounts - (24,000)
X. Provision for Interest Capitalised on Restructured Accounts - (41,853)

X[ Non-Performing Investments written-off - -
1,366,637 534,406
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SCHEDULE 18 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Background

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 comprise the accounts of the Indian Operations
of SBM Bank (Mauritius) Ltd, ("the Bank’) which is incorporated in the Republic of Mauritius, Mauritius with
limited liability. The Bank is engaged in providing banking and financial services and is a banking company
governed by the Banking Regulation Act, 1949.

b) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with requirements prescribed under the Third
schedule (Form A and Form B) of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949. The accounting and reporting policies
of the Bank used in the preparation of these financial statements conform to Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles in India (Indian GAAP), the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RB1} from time to
time, the accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read with the
Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”} and
the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 {as amended) to the extent applicable and practices
generally prevalent in the banking industry in India. The Bank follows the accrual method of accounting and

the historical cost convention,

¢) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles,
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and
Habilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the results of
operations during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon management’s best
knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates. Any revision to
accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in current or future periods.

d) Revenue recognition

Income and expenses are recognized on accrual basis except as otherwise stated. Interest income is
recognized in the Profit and Loss account on accrual basis except in case of interest on non-performing asset
which is recognized on receipt basis. Interest income on discounted instruments is recognized over the tenor
of the instrument on a straight line basis. In case of commission on letters of credit and locker fees income
is recognized upfront on its becoming due. Commission on bank guarantees issued is amortized over the
period of guarantees.

¢) Foreign Exchange Transactions

Income and expenditure items are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.
Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the Balance Sheet date are revalued at the year-
end rates as notified by Foreign Exchange Dealers Association of india (FEDAJ). Net exchange differences
arising on the settlement of transactions and on account of assets and liabilities are charged or credited to
the Profit and Loss account as prescribed by RBI.

Outstanding forward exchange contracts are revalued at rates of exchange notified by FEDAI and the
resulting profits or losses are included in the Profit and Loss account, Guarantees and Acceptances,
endorsements and other obligations are stated at the year-end closing rate as notified by FEDAL

f} Derivatives
Derivatives are financial instruments comprises of forward exchange contracts, interest rate swaps and

Cross currency swaps are undertaken for either trading or hedging purposes.

Trading derivatives are marked to market as per the generally accepted practices prevalent in the industry
and the resultant unrealized gain orloss is recognized in the Profit and Loss Account, with the corresponding
ctunrealized amount reflected in Other Assets or Other Liabilities in the Balance Sheet.
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Forward Exchange contracts and other derivative contracts which have overdue receivables which have
remained unpaid over 90 days or more are classified as non-performing assets and provided as prescribed
by RBI.

The Bank also maintains a general provision on derivative exposures computed as per marked to market
value of the contracts in accordance with the RBI guidelines.

The Bank has undertaken Funding swaps to hedge certain loans and deposits, Premjum/discount on such
funding swaps is recognized as interest income/expense and is amortized on a pro-rata basis over the
underlying swap period.

g) Investments

Classification

Investments are classified under “Held to Maturity” (HTM), “Available for Sale” (AFS) and “Held for Trading”
(HFT) categories in accordance with RBI norms. For the purpose of disclosure of balance sheet they are
classified under 6 groups viz. i) Government Securities, ii) Other Approved Securities, iii) Shares, iv)
Debentures and Bonds v} Subsidiaries and / or joint ventures and vi} Other Investments.

Valuation
Investments held under HTM category are carried at acquisition cost. If the acquisition cost is more than the

face value, the premium is amortized over the period remaining tenor of the investments.

Investments categorized under AFS and HFT portfolio are marked to market on daily basis. Investments
under AFS and HFT categories are valued as per rates declared by Financial Benchmarks India Pvt, Led.
(FBIL) and in accordance with the RBI guidelines. Consequently, net depreciation, if any, under these
classifications mentioned in Schedule 8 is provided for in the Profit and Loss account. The net appreciation,
ifany, under any classification is ignored, except to the extent of depreciation previously provided. The book
value of the individual securities is not changed consequent to periodic valuation of investments.

Treasury Bills, Commercial Paper and Certificate of Deposit are valued at carrying cost.
Non-Performing Investments are identified, and provision is made as per RBI guidelines.

The valuation of other unquoted fixed income securities (viz. State government securities, Other approved
securities, Bonds and debentures) wherever linked to the YTM rates, is computed with a mark-up {reflecting
associated credit and liquidity risk) over the YTM rates for government securities published by FBIL.

Transfer of Securities between Categories

Reclassification of investments from one category to the other, if done, is in accordance with RBI guidelines
and any such transfer is accounted for at the acquisition cost/book value/market value, whichever is lower,
as at the date of transfer. Depreciation, if any, on such transfer is fully provided for.

Repurchase transactions

Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions (if any) are accounted for as outright sale/ purchase
respectively in accordance with the prescribed RBI guidelines. The difference between the clean price of the
first leg and the second leg is recognized as interest income/expense over the period of the transaction in

the Profit and Loss account.

Others
Brokerage, fees and commission on acquisition of securities including money market instruments, are

recognized as expenses in Profit and Loss account,
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h) Fixed Assets
Office Premises is stated at revalued amount less accumulated depreciation / amortization and all other

Fixed Assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation / amortization.

Depreciation on the Fixed Assets is charged on straight-line method over the useful life of the fixed assels
prescribed in Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013. The useful life of the group of fixed assets are given

helow.
Type of Assets Useful fife
Office Premises 60 years
Office equipment (including Air conditioner) 5 years
EDP Equipment’s, Computers 3 years
Software 3 years
Furniture & Fixtures 10 years
Motor Car 8 years

Revaluation of Fixed Assets

Premises are revalued in every five years by an independent valuer to reflect current market valuation,
Appreciation, if any, on revaluation is credited to Revaluation Reserve. Depreciation un the revalued portion
of asset is adjusted from revaluation reserves.

Impairment of Assets

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment
based on internal / external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the asset’s net selling price and value in use).

i} Advances

a} The Bank follows prudential norms formulated by RBI for classifying the assets as Standard, Sub-
Standard, Doubtful and Loss assets are stated net of the required provision made on such advances.

b) Provision for advances classified as Standard, Sub-Standard, Doubtful & Loss assets are made based on
management’s assessment, subject to minimum provisions as per RBI guidelines.

j} Retirement and employee benefits
i) Leave salary - The employees of the Bank are not entitled to carry forward any leave balance to the
subsequent years. Hence, the Bank has not computed the compensated absence provision.

it} Gratuity - The Bank prevides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan, covering eligible employees.
The plan provides for lump sum payments to vested employees at retirement or upon death while in
employment or on termination of employment for an amount equivalent to 15 days’ eligible salary payable
for each completed year of service if the service is more than 5 years. The Bank accounts for the liability for
future gratuity benefits using the projected unit cost method based on annual actuarial valuation. Gratuity
fund is being managed by "LIC Group Gratuity Scheme" and any actuarial gain / loss contribution
determined by the actuary are charged to Profit and Loss account and are not deferred.

iii) Provident fund - In accordance with law, all employees of the Bank are entitled to receive benefits
under the provident fund, a defined contribution plan in which both the employee and the Bank contribute
monthly at a pre-determined rate, Contribution to provident fund are recognized as expense as and when
the services are rendered The Bank has no liability for future provident fund benefits other than its annual
contributipg:
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k) Net Profit / Loss
Profit/Loss for the year is arrived at after providing for non-performing advances, adjustments on valuation
of investments, taxes on income, depreciation on fixed assets and other necessary and mandatory

provisions,

1) Taxation

Income tax comprises the current tax (i.e. amownt of lax for the perfod, determined in accordance with the
Income tax Act, 1961 and the rules framed there under) and deferred tax (reflecting the tax effects of timing
differences between accounting income and taxable income for the year)

Provision for current tax is recognized in accordance with the provisions of Indian Income tax Act, 1961 and
is made based on the tax liability after taking credit for tax allowances and exemptions.

The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liahilities or assets are recognized
using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance sheet date. Deferred tax
assets are recognized only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realized in future.
However, where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward loss under taxation Jaws, deferred tax
assets are recognized only if there is virtual certainty of realization of such assets. The Bank assesses / re-
assesses the unrecognized deferred tax assets at each balance sheet date.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits
in the form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing
evidence that the bank will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognized as an asset in the Balance
Sheet when it is highly probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the bank

m) Operating Lease

Leases where the Jessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership over the lease
term are classified as operating leases. Lease transactions are accounted in accordance with AS 19 - Leases
issued by ICAL For operating leases, lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of Profit
and Loss account on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

n) Accounting for Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and contingent Assets

The Bank has assessed its obligations arising in the normal course of business, including pending litigations,
proceedings pending with tax authorities and other contracts including derivative and long-term
contracts. In accordance with Accounting Standard - 29 on ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets’, the Bank recognizes a provision for material foreseeable losses when it has a present
obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its
present value and are measured based on best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation
at the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimates.

In cases where the available information indicates that the loss on the contingency is reasonably possible,
but the amount of loss cannot be reasonably estimated, a disclosure to this effect is made as contingent
liabilities in the [inancial statements. The Bank does not expect the outcome of these contingencies to have
a materially adverse effect on its financial results. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed
in the financiat statements,
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o} Floating and countercyclical provision

Countercyclical provisioning buffers and floating provisions is the specific amount that Bank has set aside
in good times. These are used only in contingencies or extraordinary times of economic or system-wide
downturns. RBI had allowed to utilize up to 33 percent and 50 percent of countercyclical provisioning
buffer/floating provisions held by them as on March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2014 respectively. These
are considered as part of NPA provisions for the purpose of compliance with the minimum RBI provisioning
requirement.

p) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances with RBI, balances with other banks / institutions
and money at call and short notice (including effect of changes in exchange rates on cash and cash
equivalents in foreign currency).

SCHEDULE 18: - NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR)

I.  The Banks are required to disclose capital adequacy ratio computed under Basel I1] capital guidelines of the
RBI from the quarter ended June 30, 2013.

Sr. | CRAR ratio as per Basel HI

March 31,
No. 2018
i) | CRAR - Common Equity Tier I 24.00% |
ii} | CRAR - Tier I Capital 24.00% |-
iii) | CRAR - Tier I Capital 0.72% | -
iv) | Total Capital Ratio (CRAR} (%) 24.72% |
v) Percentage of the shareholding of the Government of India in public -

sector banks

vi) | Amount of equity capital raised il [TV NIV

vii) | Amount of Additional Tier 1 capital raised; of which R

Perpetual Non- Cumulative Preference Shares (PNCPS): S

Perpetual Debt Instruments (PDI) :

viii) | Amount of Tier 2 capital raised; o

of which

Debt capital instruments:

Preference Share Capital Instruments: {[Perpetual Cumulative
Preference Shares (PCPS) / Redeemable Non-Cumulative
Preference Shares (RNCPS) / Redeemable Cumulative Preference
Shares (RCPS)]
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2. Investments

... Rs. in Crores)

Particulars March 31, 2018 |'March 31, 2017
1. Vaiue of Investments:

(i} Gruss Value of Investments

a. InlIndia 466.85 431.16

b, Quiside India -

(if) Provisions for Depreciation - | : -

a. InlIndia - Lo .
- on transfer to securities from AFS to HTM pertfolio Bl
- on securities position 074 0,70
b. Outside India i - .
(iif) Nel Value of Investments SRR S
a. Inindia 466.11 | . 7 43046
b. Outside India T
2. Movement of provision held towards depreciation on S . '

investments:
(i} Opening balance 0.70

(ii} Add: Provision made during the year 0.04 0.70

(iii) Less: Write-off/ write-back of excess provision during the year -
(including depreciation utilized on sale of securities)
(iv) Closing balance 0.74 ' 0.70

The net book value of investments held under the three categories, viz. Held to Maturity (HTM), Held for Trading
(HFT) and Available for Sale (AFS) are as under:-

(Rs. in Crores)

Category AsatMarch 31,2018 | “AsatMarch 31,2017 -

Rs. in crores % '-R'S.fiﬁ crores i %
Held to Maturity 98.60 2115 | 109.56 . 2545
Held for Trading - e
Available for Sale 367.51 7885 | - 32090 - 7455
Total 466.11 100.00 '430.46 | 100.00

3. Repurchase & Reverse Repurchase Agreement Transactions
{Rs. in Crores)

: . Balance
Financial Year Minimum Maximum Daily Average as at
2017 -2018 outstanding outstanding outstanding
during the year | during the year | during the year Mazr(f;;‘g L

Securities Sold under
Repurchase Transactions *

(i) Government Securities 1.00% 1.00
,Eiﬂ'ﬂ:wiq-_;fﬁﬁifate Debt Securities
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. . o Balance
F fnancml Year Minimum Maximum Daily Average as at
2017 -2018 outstanding outstanding outstanding ¢
during the year | during the year | during the year | March 31,
2018
Securities purchased under
Reverse Repurchase
Transactions*
(i) Government Securities 14.004 152.91

(ii} Corporate Debt Securities

439.00

143.00

* consist of RBI LAF disclosed at face value,
" Nil outstanding on any day is ignored for reckoning minimum outstanding.

{Rs. in Crores)

. . Balance
Financial Year Minimum Maximum Daily Average as at
2016 - 2017 outstanding outstanding outstanding
during the year | during the year | during the year Mazrglll ,731'

Securities Sold under
Repurchase Transactions *
(i) Government Securities 1.00% 18.00 0.16 -
(ii) Corporate Debt Securities - 3 B )
Securities purchased under
Reverse Repurchase
Transactions *
(i} Government Securities 1.00# 265.00 40.16 128.00

(ii) Corporate Debt Securities

* consist of RBI LAF disclosed at face value.
" Nil outstanding on any day is ignored for reckoning minimum outstanding,
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4. Non-SLR Investments Portfolio - Issuer Composition of Non-SLR Investments
Balances as at March 31, 2018
{Rs. in Crores)
Extent of
Sr Extent of below Extentof | Extent of
N ’ Issuer Amount Private Investment Unrated | Unlisted
0. . o
Placement grade Securities| Securities
securities
1. | PSUs - - - - -
2. | Fig 63.08 63.08 - - 30.00
3. | Banks 0.00 - - y -
4. | Private Corporates 19.94 19.94 - ) 19.94
5. | Subsidiaries/ Joint Ventures - - -
6. | Others* 23.04 - - 23.04 23.04
7. | Provision held towards (0.70) - - (0.70 (0.70)
Depreciation
Total 105.36 83.02 - 22.34 72.28
*This includes security receipt received on sale of assets to ARC.
Balances as at March 31, 2017 {Rs. in Crores)
Extent of
Sr Extent of below Extentof : Extent of
’ Issuer Amount Private Investment Unrated | Unlisted
No. ces iy
Placement grade Securities| Securities
securities
1. | PSUs - - - - .
2. | FIs 186.65 100.00 - - 53.33
3. i Banks 0.00 - - B
4. | Private Corporates 29.00 - B B 29.00
5. | Subsidiaries/ Joint Ventures ) ) - )
6. | Others* 20.79 - - 20,79 20,79
7. | Provision held towards {0.70) - - (0.70) (0.70)
Depreciation
Total 235.74 100.00 - 20.09 102,42
*This includes security receipt received on sale of assets to ARC.
r:‘f'f wi add \’it EK’J"E}A
EARY O
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5. Non-Performing Non SLR Investments

Movement in non-performing Non SLR Investment is set out helow: -
(Rs. in Crores)

Particulars March 31, 2018 .*Méréhzﬁfl}-Z(_}'_zls'? ‘
Opening Balance 0.70 Voiii
Additions during the year since 1t April Sl 070
Reductions on account of write off during the above period e
Closing balance 0.70 [T 0,70
Total Provision held 0.70 { 0.70

6. Sale and Transfers to/ from HTM Category

During the year Bank has transferred securities worth Rs. 85 crores (FV) Classified under Held to Maturity
Category to Available for Sale Category, at the beginning of the year, in excess of 5% of book value of investments
held at the beginning of the year under HTM category. In accordance with the Master Circular, issued by the
Reserve Bank of India, on “Disclosures in Financial Statements”, the excess of Book Value over Market Value of
the Securities classified under HTM category at the end of the year amounts to Rs. 1.26 crores. (PY: Nil)

7. Forward Rate Agreement / Interest Rate Swap
(Rs. in Crores)

Particulars March 31,2018 | March 31,2017
The notional principal of swap agreements 16.29 |
Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfill their 0.04 | - .-

obligations under the agreements
Collateral required by the bank upon entering into swaps -

Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps (with Banks) 0.08
The fair value of the swap book [(Payable)/Receivable] -1 -

The nature and terms of the FCY IRS as on March 31, 2018 are set out below: {Rs. in Crores)
Nature Number | Notional Principal | Benchmark Terms
Trading 1 8.15 USD LIBOR Fixed Receivable vs Floating Pavable
Trading 1 8.15 USD LIBOR Fixed Payable vs Floating Receivable

8. Exchange Traded Interest Rate Derivatives
_(Rs. in Crores)

Sr.
No.
i. | Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate .
derivatives undertaken during the year (instrument-wise)

Particulars March 31,2018 |March31,2017

il, Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate -l L -
derivatives outstanding {instrument-wise) L '
iii. | Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate . -

derivatives outstanding and not "highly effective”
(instrument-wise)
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Sr.
Ne.
iv. | Mark-to-market value of exchange traded interest rate e
derivatives outstanding and not "highly effective"
(instrument-wise)

Particulars March 31,2018 |March 31,2017

9. Disclosures on risk exposure in derivatives:
a} Qualitative Disclosures

The structure and organization for management of risk in derivatives trading:

Treasury operation is segregated into three different department's viz, front office, mid office and back office.
The primary role of front office is to conduct business that of mid office is to ensure compliance in accordance
with set norms and policies and that of back office is to process/settle the transactions.

The Bank has in place policies and procedures, which have been approved at various levels including Roard,
Executive Forum & Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) in India to ensure adherence to various risk parameters

and prudential limits.

The scope and nature of risk measurement, risk reporting and risk monitoring systems:

a. Risk Measurement
For foreign exchange contracts, risk is measured through a daily report called, Value at Risk (VAR),
which computes VAR on the forex, gaps using FEDAI VAR factors.

b. Risk Reporting and Risk monitoring systems:
The Bank has the following reports/systems in place, which are reviewed by the top management:
1. VAR
2. Net Open Position
3. Aggregate Gap Limit (AGL)/Individual Gap Limit (IGL)
4. Stop loss limits
c. The Bank has the following policy paper in place, and approved by its Head Office;
1. Treasury Manual

2. Asset-Liability Management (ALM) policy

Accounting Policy:
All outstanding derivatives transactions (including forex forwards) are booked as off-balance sheet items. The
trading positions are revalued on a marked to market basis whereas the funding/investment swaps follow the
accrual basis of accounting.

\‘l\i"\ .”i ,r ;\‘\ \
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b) Quantitative Disclosures

(Rs. in Crores)

] Currency Interest Rate rest-Rate .
!ﬁllo. Particulars Derivatives Derivatives ) : 3 "_i:","_?'.ti.\f'e_s-.. :
March 31,2018 | March 31,2018 | March 7| March 31,2017
1. | Derivatives 1,742.69 . - e =
notionai
Principal
Amount
fa) For hedging 692.53 - .
(b) For trading 1,050.16 16.29 :.- T -
2. | Marked to
Market
position e
(a) Asset (+) 9.15 0.040 | -
(b) Liability (-) 4.60 0.04 | =
3. | Credit 37.47 0.12 [ -
Exposure 7
4. | Likely impact
of one
percentage
change in
Interest Rate
(100*PV01) R el R e
(a) On hedging (0.02) . ___(0.003.34}. ; ST
derivatives i __:.: AN . L
(b) On trading 0.001 (0.0008) |-+ ~0.00339 - B
derivatives R E IR [T '
5. | Maximum and
Minimum of
100*PV01
observed
during the year
(a} On hedging e e
Maximum 0.001 [ Towozes| T
Minimum (0.02) - (0.00597) - B N
fb) On trading | o ) ' | |
Maximum 0.05 - 0.006068 | L .
Minimum (0.05) (0.0008) |~ 5 (0:00329) ]

10. Non-Performing Assets (NPAs)

March 31,
Particualars 2018
(i)  NetNPAs to Net Advances 1.05%
#.(if). Movement of Gross NPAs
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March 31,
Particulars 2018

(a) Opening balance 132,14 |

(b} Additions during the year 105.87

{¢)  Reductions during the year (59.68)

(d) Closing balance 178.33 |
(iii) Movement of Net NPAs

(a) Opening balance 43.30

{b) Additions during the year 6.58 |

(c} Reductions during the year (39.15) |

(d) Closing balance 10.73 |
{iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs

(excluding provision on Standard Assets)

(a) Opening balance 88.84 |

(b)  Provisions made during the year (Gross) 135.83 |

(c)  Write-off / write-back of excess provisions (57.07)

{(d) Closing balance 167.60 |:

Note :- Item (iii}) & (iv) includes the impact of counter cyclical provision utilised amounting to Nil in FY 2017-18
(P.Y.: Nil) and floating provision utilised amounting to Nil in F.Y 2017-18 {P.Y. : Nil)

11. Details of loan assets subjected to restructuring during the year 2017-18
(Rs. in Crores)

CDR Mechanism SME Debt Others
Restructuring
d Number of borrowers - - -
St .
andard Amount outstanding - -
advances
restructured | Sacrifice (diminution in the
fair value) - - -
Number of horrowers - - -
Sub Standard ,
Amount outstanding - - -
advances
restru(:tured Sacriﬁce (dlmlnution ln the
fair value) - - -
" Number of borrowers - - -
Doubtful Amount outstanding - - -
advances
restructured | Sacrifice (diminution in the
fair value) - - -
Number of borrowers - - -
Total Amount outstanding - - -
Sacrifice (diminution in the
fair value) - - .
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1'1.Details of loan assets subjected to restructuring during the year 2017-18 (Continued).
(Rs. in Crores)
Type of Under CDR Mechanism Under SME Debt Othe Total
Restructurin Restructuring
[ Mechanism
:g Asset
& | Classificatio
e B = B =
_E . =17 e 21l
5|88 < & 8% | 8 2| 8 285 N
14| Bl gl Bl 5438 S5 3|2l BB B
g 1281 318|828 3|& 18 2|8l 8| al& 28|88
Detajls |
1 | Restructure No. of
d  Accounts | _boerrowers - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
asonApril 1 | Amount
of the FY | putstandin
(opening g - - - - - - - - - -1 - - - -1 - - - - -
figures)* Provision
thereon - - - - - . . - . . - . . . . . R .
2 | Fresh No, of
restructurin | borrowers - - - - - - - “ - - - - - - - - - -
g during the | Amount
year outstandin
g - . . . - . . - - o N N - - - - .
Provision
thereon - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
3 | Upgradation | No. of
s te | borrowers - - - - - - - - - . - - - - - - - - -
restructured | Amount
standard outstandin
category 2 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
during the | Provision
FY thereon Sl I SN FLAN NG N s S R RN PO M NI SR DR R B N -
4 | Restructure | No. of
d standard | borrowers - ol I - o I N L e o I
advances Amount
which cease { putstandin
to  attract | p
higher Provisian
provisioning | thereon
and / or
additional
risk weight
at the end of
the FY and
hence need
not be
shown  as
restructured
standard
advances at
the
beginning of
the next FY - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
5 | Downgradat | No. of
ions of i borrowers - - - " - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
restructured | Amount
accounts outstandin
during the | g - - |- - - - - . - -] - - - - - - -
FY Provision
thereon - - - - - - - . - - - - R R - - R .
6 | Write-offs of { No. of
restructured | borrowers - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
accounts Amount :
during the | outstandin
g - - - - - - - - - - - -
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Provision
thereon “ - - - - - - . - - -
7 1 Restructure No. of
d  Accounts | borrowess -

as on March | Amount
31 of theFY | outstandin

[closing a - . - - - - - -0 |- - - - -
figures*) Provision
thereon - - - - - - - . - . R . . .

11. Details of loan assets subjected to restructuring during the year 2016-17.

(Rs. in Crores)

“CDR Mechanism /[ - SMEDebt | ° Others
| Restructuring _
d Number of borrowers SR T T .
Standar Amount outstanding . - -
advances e - e :
restructured | Sacrifice (diminution in the :
fair value) o s BT -
Number of borrowers L - RS I ' -
Sub Standard 2 ST T T e '
Amount outstanding - - : : S -
advances — —— T :
restructured | Sacrifice (diminution in the | | T I RO e
fair value) L o e ] e T
Number of borrowers ' R R T R
tful -
Doub Amount outstanding - -
advances :
restructured | Sacrifice (diminution in the | = i i
fair value) B R L KRS - | -
Number of borrowers SRR E -
Total Amount outstanding . R - N
Sacrifice {diminution in the B L L
fair value) RS B L R -
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11. Details of loan assets subjected to restructuring during the year 2016-17 (Continued).
(Rs. in Crores)
Type of Under CDR Mechanisim Under SME Debt Others Total
Restructuring - Restructuring
Mechanism
}’ Asset
& | Classilication -
E 2 2 g
o Tl = =] B| = o | Bl =~ k=) Bl
g 12|18 ), (sl | -IEI& 2[5 |52 |.
g | & 5 4 & Bl A1 | 8| Bl 5813 4Bl g | 22| g B
& alalge | d| 3 &3l 8|3181 38| & |38 3858
Details §
1 | Restructured Nea. of 2 -1 - 2 - - - - - 2 - - 2
Accounts as  on | borrowers
Aprit 1 of the FY | Amount 35.56 -] -1 - | 3556 - - - - - - - -1 -| 35561 - -] -1 3556
(opening figures)* ! outstanding
Provision 8.27 - - - 8.27 - - - - - I -] - - 8.27 - “ o 8.27
thereon
2 | Fresh No, of - LS N - - - - - - -l - -] - - - - -1 -
restructuring borrowers
during the year Amount - Eo B - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
onlstanding
Provision - L I - - - - - - - - - - ~ - - - -
thereon
3 | Upgradations to | No. of - -] - - - - . - - - -] - - - - - -
restructured borrowers
standard category i Amount - N . - - - - - I -] - - - - - -
during the FY outstanding
Provisicn - Eo I - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
thereon |
4 | Restructured No. of - - - ' - - - -
standard borrowers |
advances  which | Amount - - - - - -
cease to attract | outstanding I
higher Provision - - - - - - -
provisioning and / | thereon
or additional risk
weight at the end
of the FY and
hence need not be
shown as
restructured
standard
advances at the
beginning of the
next FY Y
5 | Downgradations No, of 2 2 - - . - -
of  restructured | borrowers
accounts during | Amount 3556 < - -| 3556 - - . - - - - -] - -1 3556
the FY outstanding
Provision 8.27 -l -8 - 8.27 - - - - - - - - - - 8.27 - N 8.27
thereon
6 | Write-offs of | No. of - - -t - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
restructured borrowers
accounts  during | Amount - - - - - - - - - - -1 - -] - - - - - - -
the FY outstanding
Provision - -l -] - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - i - -
thereon
7 | Restructured No. of - -1 -1 - - - - - - - - - -] - - - - - -
Accounts as on | borrowers
March 31 of theFY | Amount - - -] - - - - - - - -1 - I - - - -] - -
(closing figures*} | outstanding
Provision - - - - . - - - . - . . -] - - - . 1.
thereon ,
ing-the year the Bank had not entered in the Scheme for Sustainable Structuring Qf'ﬁ_fi’ésse
T [ Il
- ]

i
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12. Details of financial assets sold to Securitisation/ Reconstruction Company for Asset reconstruction

A. Details of Sales

_(Rs.in Crores)

Particulars March 31,2018 | March31,2017.
(i} No. of accounts S R |
(ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to - - 878
SC/RC B
(iii} Agoregate consideration 3.00 2,85 .
(iv} Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts - -
transferred in earlier years
{v) Agpregate gain / loss over net book value 3.00 5.93
B. Details of Book Value of Investments in Security Receipts
(Bs. in Crores)
Particulars March 31, | March31,
2018 L 2017
22.34 | |

(i) Backed by NPAs sold by the bank as underlying

financial companies as underlying

(i} Backed by NPAs sold by other banks / financial institutions / non-banking

Total 2234
FY 2017-2018:
(Rs. in Crores)
SRs issued
SRs issued more than 5 SRsissued
Particulars within past | yearsagobut | more than 8
5 years within past 8 years ago
years
. Book value of SRs backed by NPAs sold by the
(1) . 22,34 -
bank as underlying
Provision held against (i) - -
Book value of SRs backed by NPAs sold by
(i) other banks / financial institutions / non- - -
banking financial companies as underlying
Provision held against (ii) - -
Total (i) + (ii) 22.34 -
FY 2016-2017;
(Rs. in Crores)
. SRs issued SRs issued
SRsissued more than 5 more than
Particulars within past 5 years ago but
cir s 8 years
years within past 8 400
years &
) Book value of SRs backed by NPAs sold by 20.09 i
the bank as underlying '
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Provision held against (i) -

Book value of SRs backed by NPAs sold by
{ii) other banks / financial institutions / non-
banking financial companies as underlying

Provision held against (ii) -

Total {i) + {ii) 20.09

13. Details of non-performing financial assets purchased/sold

(Rs. in Crores)
Sr. March 31, 2018 h 31,2017
No.
Particulars
A, Details of non-performing financial assets purchased: -1
1| a | No. of accounts purchased during the year - |- : :
b | Aggregate outstanding JlEaETE .
2 | a | Of these, number of accounts restructured during the year A -
b | Aggregate outstanding S -
B. Details of non-performing financial assets sold:
No. of accounts sold -
Aggregate outstanding - R
Agpregate consideration received I e .

14. Provisions on Standard Assets

(Rs. in Crores)

Particulars March 31,2018 | - March 31,
w2017
Provision on Standard Assets 4.45 ' 3.19
15. Important Financial Ratios
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2018 2017
Interest Income as a percentage to Working Funds* 7.01% | 6.32%
Non-Interest Income as a percentage to Working Funds* 0.76% 0.68%
Operating Profit as a percentage to Working Funds* 1.65% . : 1-_12%
Return on Assets™* (5.54) % ik (2_-'0:4} %
Business {Deposits plus Advances) per employee (Rs. in crores) # 33.12 32,96
Profit / (Loss) per employee (Rs. in crores) (1.56) (0.59)

* Working Funds represent monthly average of total assets (excluding accumulated losses) during the year as
g P y 8 B

reported to RBI in Form X under Section 27 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949.

** Return on Assets is computed with reference to Average Working Funds {excluding accumuiated losses).

# Dep051ts exclude inter-bank deposits.
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16. Asset Liabifity Management
Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities as of March 31, 2018

(Rs. in Crores)
Particulars Dayi 2to7 8to 15t0 | 29days | Over3 | Over6s | Overl | Over3 | Over5 Total
days 14 28  |andupto] month | month |yearand |yearsand! years
days days |3 months|and upto[and upto] upto3 | upto 5
6 months| 1year } years years

Advances 5.96 12.79 8.88 | 5B57 48,79 5147 | 18225 436,07 | 10561 | 10608 | 1,016.47
[nvestment in
Securities 49,73 - | 1994 - 18.01 78.02 | 160.77 25.28 34.09 80.26 | 466.10
Depasits 20,95 2066 i 3392 | 14.25| 19549 | 150.15 | 640.15! 12096 9,24 - | 1,205.77
Borrowings - - - -1 13035 - - - - . 130.35
Foreign
Currency Assets

346.63 | 23198 | 2241 3083 | 38000 207.66 | 396.65 - - -11,616.16
Foreign 484 | 17632 17.83 | 20.69 | 367.11 | 20549 | 49056 2.99 - - | 1,285.83
Currency

Liabitities

Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities as of March 31, 2017
(Rs. in Crores)

Particulars Dayl - (2.to 7 days| -8to | 15to"| 29.da A over 5[ Total
)| “days .| .days '

Advances 29.83 | .23.51:] 1226 2.07 | 7 25: +13:34 | 730.92
Investmentin {7233 | . 2631 3371246 [ 2 0,06 1. :430.46
Securities S T e e I

Deposits ©14.58¢ 7 1643021.097 12961 178, 37:01,218.25
Borrowings T SRR AR N Rt IRRE i .
Foreign Currency| 768.04 1 - 117.81 ] © 3 1,432.15
Foreign Currency| - .2.66 369.64 | :0.06:}:22:64°| 13, A 1900,25
Liabitities o IR I RS

The information on maturity pattern has been compiled by the management based on the same estimate and
assumptions as that for compiling the returns submitted to the RBL

17. Exposure to Sensitive Sector
a. Exposure to Real Estate Sector
{Rs. in Crores)

Category March 31, . March 31,
2018 2017

a) Direct Exposure o
(i) Residential Mortgages 6575 | . 6.00

- of which housing loans up to Rs.15 Lakhs 0.08 | o

(ii) Commercial Real Estate 50.00

1. (ili} Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and
- oo . other securitized exposures -
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Category March 31, | March31, .
2018 2017
{a) Residential - -
(b) Commercial Real Estate B R SR A

b) Indirect Exposure

Fund based and non-fund-based exposures on National R _
Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs). 5360 |- 62,60

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 16943 | 11860

b. Exposure to Capital Market
{Rs. in Crores)
March 31, |March 31,

Particulars 2018 2017
i Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible '
debentures and units of equity-oriented mutual funds the corpus of 0.70 0.70

which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt;

il Advances against shares/bonds/ debentures or other securities or on
clean basis to individuals for investment in shares (including
IPOs/ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of
equity-oriented mutual funds;

iii. Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds o .
or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds are A R
taken as primary security; '

iv. Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the
collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible
debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the
primary security other than shares/convertible bonds/convertible
debentures/units of equity oriented mutual funds does not fully cover
the advances;

v. Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees
issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market makers;(see * below)

vi. Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares /
bonds/debentures or other securities or on clean basis for meeting
promoter’s contribution to the equity of new companies in
anticipation of raising resources;

vii. Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows/issues;

viii. Underwriting commitments taken up by the banks in respect of Lo
primary issue of shares or convertible bonds or convertible ol R
debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds; Ve

ix. Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading; - e

X. All exposures to Venture Capital Funds {(both registered and
unregistered) will be deemed to be on par with equity and hence will
be reckoned for compliance with the capital market exposure ceilings
(both direct and indirect)

0.70

_“Total Exposure to Capital Market
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18. Risk category-wise country exposure

Provision for Country Risk exposure in terms of RBI Circular DBOD.BP.BC.71/21.04.1 03/2002-03  dated
February 19, 2013 is as follows:

(Bs. in Crores)

Risk Category Exposure (net) as | Provision held as Exposure[net)as 1 ‘Provision held as
atMarch 31, 2018 | atMarch 31,2018 | -atMarch'31,2017 | at March 31, 2017
Insignificant 30.49 e 8BS 0.05
Low 9.01 T zmes | ove
Moderate - e .
High - At _ -
Very High - e e
Restricted . e e - I
Off-credit - - "f o L ' -
Total 39.50 L 11463 0.11

19. Details of Single Borrower Limit (SBL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the Bank

During the year March 31, 2018, the Bank has exceeded the single borrower limit for Gitanjali Gems Limited,
Bharat Financial Inclusion Limited and Shriram City Union Limited to 15.7%, 10.5% and 10.5% respectively of
capital funds. The breach of limit has been communicated to RBI through letter dated 9th August 2017.

During the financial year ended March 31, 2018, the Bank did not exceed the group borrower limits in respect
of any of its clients {PY: NIL).

20. Unsecured Advances

Unsecured advances have been appropriately classified under ‘Schedule 9 ~ Advances’. During the year ended
March 31, 2018, the Bank has not given loans against intangibie securities such as rights, licenses, authority etc.,,
hence no disclosure is required for reporting advances against intangibles.

21. Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RBI
There are no penalties imposed on our bank by RBI for the E.Y. 2017-18 (PY: NIL).

22. Prior Period Items

Following Income and expenditure pertains to prior periods, the same has been affected to Profit and Loss
account for the period April 1, 2017 to March 31, 2018.
__(Rs. in Crores)

Sr.No. | Particulars March 31, 2018 | March 31,2017 -
A Expenditure : T S
(i) Staff Expenses -
(i) Other professional fees 0.41 |:

TOTAL 041 |
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23. Description of contingent liabilities

Sr. No, Contingent Liabilities Brief
1. Claims against the The bank is a party to various legal and tax proceedings in the normal
Bank not course of business,

acknowledged as debts | The Bauk dues not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a
material adverse effect on the Bank's financial conditions, results of
operations or cash flows,

2, Liability on account of | The Bank enters into foreign exchange contracts, currency options,
forward exchange and | forward rate agreements, currency swaps and interest rate swaps with
derivative contracts interbank participants and customers. Forward exchange contracts are

commitments ta buy or sell foreign cirrency at a future date at the
contracted rate. Currency swaps are commitments to exchange cash
flows by way of interest/principal in one currency against another,
based on predetermined rates. Interest rate swaps are commitments to
exchange fixed and floating interest rate cash flows. The notional
amounts of financial instruments of such foreign exchange contracts
and derivatives provide a basis for comparison with instruments
recognized on the balance sheet but do not necessarily indicate the
amounts of future cash flows involved or the current fair value of the
instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Bank’s exposure to
credit or price risks. The derivative instruments become favorable
(assets) or unfavorable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in market
rates or prices relative to their terms. The aggregate contractual or
notional amount of derivative financial instruments on hand, the extent
to which instruments are favorable or unfavorable and, thus the
aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities can
fluctuate significantly.

3. Guarantees given on As a part of its commercial banking activities the Bank issues
behalf of constituents, | documentary credit and guarantees on behalf of its customers.
acceptances, Documentary credits such as letters of credit enhance the credit
endorsements and standing of the customers of the Bank. Guarantees generally represent
other obligations irrevocable assurances that the Bank will make payments in the event

of the customer failing to fulfill its financial or performance obligations.

4, Other items for which | - Value dated purchase of securities
the Bank is -Capital Commitments
contingently liable -Amount deposited with RBI under Depositor Education Awareness

Fund

Refer Schedule 12 for amounts relating to contingent liability

24. Contingent Liabilities

a. Other Item of Contingent Liability includes, Income Tax of Rs. 8.18 crores (PY: 8.02 crores). The Bank has gone
in appeal to Income Tax Appellate Tribunal {ITAT) and High Court against the income tax assessment order
of the department for AY 1996-97, 1997-98, 1999-00 to 2008-09, 2012-13 and 2013-14. The appeals are
pending for the final outcome of the ITAT and high court and the Bank is expecting favorable judicial decisions.

b.Other Item of Contingent Liability includes, Service Tax of Rs. 0.38 crores {PY:0.09 crores). The bank has given
its replies/explanations to the audit observations for the financial years 2015-16 and 2016-17. The bank
expects that the department would issue a show cause notice for the points which the bank has not paid the
]lablhty asce; tained by the service tax department. Also, there was a show cause notpeiss ed on 05.03.2018
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for deductions of HUAE (head office administration expenses) claimed by the bank u/s 44C of the Income Tax
Act, 1961. The bank expects favorable judgement on the above cases.

25. Provision for Long Term contracts

The Bank has assessed its long term contracts (including Derivative Contracts) for material foreseeable losses
and made adequate provisions in the books of accounts, under any law/accounting standards wherever
applicable and disclosed the same under the relevant notes in the financial statements.

26. Delerred Tax

Inaccordance with AS-22 on “Accounting for Taxes on Income” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI), the Bank has recognized Deferred Tax Assets on such timing differences where there is a
reasonable certainty that such deferred tax assets can be reversed against the deferred tax liability. Deferred
tax asset on accumulated carry forward business losses and depreciation is not recognised as there is no virtual
certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be
realised.”

The major composition of Deferred Tax Liabilities (DTL) & Deferred Tax Assets (DTA) is as under:
(Rs. in Crores)

Sr. Particulars March 31, | March31,
No. 2018 L2017
A. | DTA: A
(i) | Provision for Loan Losses, Floating Provision and counter cyclical 9,62 |« :9.67
provision
(ii) i Provision for Standard Advances 0.27
(iii) | Provision for Funded Interest Term Loan -
(iv) | Disallowed Expenses 0.16
(v) | Unabsorbed Losses -
Total DTA 10.05
B. | DTL:
(i) | Depreciation on Fixed Assets {10.05)
Total DTL (10.05) |- o
C. | NETDTL / (DTA} e

There is no debit or credit to Profit & Loss account,

27. Provisions & Contingencies
{Rs. in Crores)

Particulars March 31, “March 31,
2018 o 2017

Depreciation on Investments 0.05 070
Provision/write-off towards non-performing assets/Investment 13547 |- 7 80.63
Provision for Standard Assets 126 - '(13'7]
Provision for Income Tax (including Deferred Tax) B
Provisions for diminution in fair value Restructured Advances b '(2 4'0]
Provision for Country Risk (0.12) | i 0.08
Provision for interest capitalised on restructured accounts - " '(4_20)

53.44

Total . -
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28. There was no instance of SGL bouncing during the financial year ending March 31, 2018. {P.Y.: NIL)

29. Letter of Comfort/ Undertaking (LOCs/ LOUs) issued
As of March 31, 2018, LOUs were outstanding, amounting to Rs 111.67 Crores (P.Y.: NIL)

30. Praw down from Reserves
During the financial year ended March 31, 2018, there has been no drawdown from Reserves (P.Y.: NIL). Also
Refer Schedule 2 - Reserves and Surplus.

31. Disclosure of Complaints / Unimplemented awards of banking ombudsmen
In accordance with RBI circular DBOD. No. Leg. BC.9/09.07.006/2009-10 dated July 01, 2009 details of
customer complaints and awards passed by Banking Ombudsman are as follows:

a. Customer Compiaints

Particulars March 31, 2018 :_ M_ar_ch 31, 2017
(a)__| No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year - T “

(b)__|_No. of complaints received during the year - _f _ﬁ : -

(c) | No. of complaints redressed during the year - R -

(d) | No. of complaints pending at the end of the year o

b. Awards passed by the Banking Ombudsman

Particuiars March 31,2018 | March 31, 2017
{a) | No. ofunimplemented Awards at the beginning of the year R -
(b} | No.of Awards passed by Banking Ombudsman during the year - -

(¢} i No.of Awards implemented during the year - ' -
(d)_| No. of unimplemented Awards Pending at the end of the year - -

32, Segment Reporting

Part A: Business Segments

In accordance with RBI guidelines, the Bank has identified the following three primary segments: Treasury,
Corporate Banking and Retail Banking. These segments are identified based on nature of services provided, risk
and returns, organizational structure of the Bank and the internal financial reporting system.

Treasury Operations: Undertakes Derivative Trading, Money Market Operations, and Investment in Bonds,
Treasury Bills, Government Securities, CP, CD and Foreign Exchange Operations. The revenue of this

segment consist of interest earned on funding, investment income and gains on Government Securities, CP, CD's
and debenture / bonds, profits / loss on exchange and derivative transactions. The principal expenses of this
segment consist of cost of funds, personnel cost, other direct overheads and allocated expenses.

Corporate Banking: Primarily comprises of funded advances to Corporate. Revenues of this segment consist of
interest earned on loans made to corporate clients, interest earned on cash float and fees received from fee-
based activities like letter of credit, guarantee etc. The principal expenses of this segment consist of interest
expenses on funds borrowed allocated based on personnel costs and allocated expenses.
Retail:Banking: Consists of revenue arising out of personal loan, housing loan, etc.

T
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For the year ended March 2018

Rs. in Crores)

Extraordinary Profit/Loss

Net profit/{Loss)

Other Information

Total Assets

Depreciation expenditure during the year

For the year ended March 2017

SIS
Sl

Business Segments Corporate Treasury Retail Total
Revenue 86.85 5551 3.44 145,80
Results 104.91 2512 (95.76)
Unallocable Expense L ] 898
Operating Profit

Income Taxes

Segment Assets 987.05 | 736921 5493 | 177890 |
Un allocable Assets e ‘;‘j%eﬁ* . 16.27 |

1 - 43 e v
£ A Eaiie Rz b SASunS s
s

Segment liahilities 1,794.57
Un allocable Liabilities 0.60
Total Liabilities 1,795.17
Capital expenditure during the year 1.11
0.73

| 1,795.17 |

Rs. in Crores)

Extraordinary Profit/Loss

Business Segments Corporate | “Treasury Retail Total
Revenue 48931 .. 68.23" 081 117.97
Results 977 SR AL 363 221
Unallocable Expense L2035
Operating Profit S (3447
Income Taxes T

Net profit/(Loss)

Other Information

Segment Assets

Unallocable Assets

Total Assets 1,760.83
Segment liabilities 1,760.65
Unallocable Liabilities 0.18
Total Liabilities 1,760.83
Unallocable Capital expenditure during the . - - 0.04
year

Depreciation expenditure during the year - - - 0.68

Part B: Geographic Segments

The Bank operates as a single unit in India and as such has no identifiable geographical segments subject to
dissimilar risks and returns. Hence, no information relating to geographical segments are presented.

Notes for segment reporting:

1. In computing the above information, certain estimates and assumptions have been made by the
Management and have been relied upon by the auditors.

2. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses which cannot be allocated to any segments have been classified as
upaltocated. The unallocated liabilities include TDS on vendor payments and serviceﬁ)ﬂgwpﬁgyabie. The
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unallocated assets include taxes and capital work in progress. The unallocated expenses include IT
expenses, repairs and maintenance, rent, conveyance, etc,

33. Disclosure under Employee Benefits - Revised Accounting Standard 15

a)

b)

c)

d)

The Premium payable to Life insurance Corporation of India towards “Group Gratuity Policy” has been
charged to Profit & Loss Account is 0.20 crores (PY: NIL) and there is no unamortized liability held in the
hooks.

The contribution to employees Provident Fund amounted to Rs. 0.58 crores for the year ended March 31,
2018 (PY: Rs. 0.41 crores).

The Bank has a policy to pay leave encashment to employees only on their retirement or super-annuation
and noton the intermediate separations, In the opinion of the management, there shall not be any significant
liability towards leave encashment and as such, no provision has been made for the same.

The Bank does not have pension scheme for its employees. However, the Bank contributes up to 10% of
eligible employees’ salary per annum, to the New Pension Fund administered by a Pension Fund Regulatory
and Development Authority (PFRDA) appointed pension fund manager. The Bank recognises such
contributions as an expense in the year when an employee renders the related service. Such contribution

for the year ended March 31, 2018 is Rs. 0.03 crores.

1) Change in the Present value of Projected Benefit Obligation:

March 31,
2018

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the Beginning of the Period 1.17 &5
Interest Cost 0.09 [
Current Service Cost 0.24 [+
{Benefit paid from the Fund) {0.12)
Past Service Cost 048 [+ T
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Demographic 0.01 | v o
Assumptions g
Actuarial {Gains}/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Financial 0.15
Assumptions
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Experience 0.01 %
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the End of the Period 2.03

II} Change in the Fair Value of Plan Assets:

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the Period

Expected Return on Plan Assets

Contributions by the Employer

{Benefit Paid from the Fund)

Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on Plan Assets - Due to Experience

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the Period
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I} Actuarial (Gains})/Losses Recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss:

_(Rs. in Crores)
March 31, |- ‘March31; -

2018 2017
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation for the Period 017 [ 022
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Plan Asset for the Period (0,01) [
Actuarial {Gains)/Losses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss 0.16 | 022

IV) Actual Return on Plan Assets:

March 31,
2018 :
Expected Return on Plan Assets 0.07 1=
Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on Plan Assets - Due to Experience -
Actual Return on Plan Assets 0.07

V} Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet;

{Rs, in Crores)
March 31, | 'March 31,

2018 2017
(Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the end of the Period) (2.03) |
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the Period 1.06 |
Funded Status (Surplus/ (Deficit}) (0.97) |
Unrecognized Past Service Cost at the end of the Period - |
Net (Liability)/Asset Recognized in the Balance Sheet (097} |-

VI) Net Interest Cost:

March 31,
2018
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the Beginning of the Period 1.17
(Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the Period) {0.91)
Net Liability/(Asset) at the Beginning 0.26
Interest Cost 0.09 |~
(xpected Return on Plan Assets) (0.07)
Net Interest Cost for Current Period 0,02 7
Vil) Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss:
March 31,
2018
Current Service Cost 0.24
Net Interest Cost 0.02 |
Actuarial {Gains)/Losses 0.17 |
Past Service Cost - Vested Benefit Recognized During the Period 0.48

Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss 0.91 |-
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VIi}) Balance Sheet Reconciliation:

March 31,
2018 :
Opening Net Liability 027 [ 0,02
Expense Recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss (.91 |20 037
Net Liability/(Asset) Transfer In N
Net (Liability)/Asset Transfer Qut e
(Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer) o R
(Employer's Contribution) (0210 1 (042)
Net Liability/{Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheet 097 |- 027
IX) Category of Assets:
March 31,
2018

Government of India Assets -
State Government Securities -
Special Deposits Scheme B R
Debt Instruments B TSR R SR
Corporate Bonds S
Cash And Cash Equivalents S (St SR

Insurance fund 1057 091
Asset-Backed Securities o

Structured Debt R R T

Other N iR
Total 1.05[ 1091

Actuarial assumptions:

March 31, 2018
Expected Return on Plan Assets 7.82%
Rate of Discounting 7.82%
Rate of Salary Increase 9.11%
Rate of Employee Turnover 6.00%
Indian Assured Lives
Mortality Rate During Employment Mortality (2006-08)

34. Related Party Transactions

Related Party Transactions in terms of AS-18 on “Related Party Disclosures” are disclosed below:
Relationship during the year:

1 | Parent SBM Holdings Ltd
State Bank of Mauritius Ltd

2 i Subsidiaries of Head office SBM Bank Kenya Ltd

| I The Chief Executive Officer(CEQ) - Mr. Siby
‘1:Key Management Personnel | Sebastian
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Transactions during FY2017-18:

{Rs. in Crores)

Subsidiaries of the

Key Management

Particulars Parent Total
Parent Personnel
Outstan Maﬁimu Outstan Maﬁmu Outstan Mai{limu Outstan Maic]:mu
ding Balance ding Balance ding Balance ding Balance
Liabilities
Deposit 1358 | 691.94 0.09 0.24 13.67 | 69218
Borrowings 130.35 | 159.80 . : -| 13035 159.80
Interest payable 0.49 i i i ) 0.49 _
MTM loss on FX
forwards - 0.002 - 0.05 - - 0.05
Total 144.42 | 851.74 0.09 0.29 . -| 14451 | 852.03
mAsset
Lending
- 2594 12.82 12.82 - - 12.82 38.76
Balances with ) .
Bank 0.26 - - - 0.26 -
Interest N )
receivable - - - - -
Reimbursement i .
from HO 0.86 - - 0.86 -
MTM gain on FX
forwards - 0.07 - 0.01 - - 0.08
Total 112 | 26.01| 12.82| 12.83 - -| 13.94| 38.84
Interest paid 011 i i i i i 0.11
Interest i ) i )
Received 0.43 0.11 0.54 -
Off Balance
sheet items
FX Forwards . 1.60 - 13.58 i - - 15.18
Total ; 1.60 .| 1338 : : .| 1518
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Transactions during FY2016-17;

{Rs in Crores)

Subsidiaries of Key Management Total

Particulars Parent the Parent Personnel

Maximu Maxim Maximu Maximu

Cutstan Outstan um Outstan QOutstan
ding m ding Balanc ding n ding m

Balance o Balance Balance
Liabilities -
Deposit 52.89 117.59 - 0.33 0.33 53.22 117.92
Borrowings ) _ i i i A
Interest
Paid /payable - - - - . - - ,
Total 52.89 117.59 - - 0.33 0.33 53.22 117.92
Asset
Lending 2594 | 6491 ) ; ; 2594 | 6491
Balances with
Bank 0.01 - - - - 0.01 -
Interest
receivable (.28 - - - - - 0.28 -
Reimbursement
from HO 0.10 - - - - - 0.10 -
Total 26.33 64.91 - - . - 26,33 64.91

35. Impairment of Assets

There is no impairment of any of the fixed assets

‘Impairment of Assets” issued by the [CAL

36.

and as such no provision is required as per AS-28 on

AS 20 - Earning per Share, AS 21 on ‘Consolidated financial statements’, AS-23 on ‘Accounting for

Investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements', AS 24 on ‘Discounting Operation’ and AS
25 on 'Interim Financial Reporting’ issued by ICAI are not applicable to bank.

37. Counter Cyclical / Floating Provisions

_ _{Rs. in Crores)

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
Counter cyclical | Floating Couhtéf‘cy_bliéél Floating
Opening Balance in floating provision 191 0.60 | .- 191 0.60
Add- Provision made during the year . 3 Sl -
Less- Provision utilize during the year for - - -

& ific provision

s:balance in floating provision 1.91 0.60
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38. Small and Micro Industries

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006 which came into force from October 2,
2006 certain disclosures are required to be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises. There have
been no reported cases of delays in payments to micro and small enterprises or of interest payments due to
delays in such payments, The above is based on information provided by the Bank which has been relied upon

by the auditors,

39. The Bank has nol undertaken bancassurance business In current year. (P.Y. : NiL).

40. Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs

I. Concentration of Deposits

(Rs. in Crores)

Particulars March 31,2018 | March 31, 2017
Total deposits of twenty largest depositors 743.03 | 794.11
Percentage of Deposits to twenty largest depositors to total 61.62 % '§5'_18%
deposits of the Bank
Concentration of Advances* (Rs. in Crores)
Particulars March 31,2018 'March _31 2017
Total advances to twenty largest borrowers 966.02 | 643.90
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to total 72.72% | a 7202% :
advances of the Bank R
Concentration of Exposures* (Rs. in Crores)
Particulars March 31,2018 March 31 2017
Total Exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers 966.13 _ 724.57
Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers / 67.35% L 64"_07%
Customers to Total Exposures of the bank on borrowers / '
Customers

*Excluding banking exposures
Concentration of NPA (Rs. in Crores)
Particulars March 31, 2018 _-March 31 2017
Total Exposure of top Four NPA accounts 155.56 102.29

1L Sector wise NPA _(Bs.in Crores)
Sl Sector Current year Vi B
No. Outstanding | Gross NPAs | Percentage of |
Total Gross NPAs to
Advances Total

Advances in
that sector

Advances
~inthat

A | Priority Sector

1 | Agriculture - -
nd ailied
(ctivities

i T00%
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5L Sector Current year b
No. Outstanding | Gross NPAs | Percentage of | Ol Percentage
Total Gross NPAsto i As | -of Gross
Advances Total % | NPAsto
Advances in . “Total ™
that sector Ady
2 | Advances 157.22 146.29 93.05%
to
industries
sector
eligible as
priority
sector
lending
3 | Services 113.24 . 0.00%
Personal - - -
loans A et
Sub-total 270.46 146.29 54.09% | .. 355,
{A)

Non-Priority Sector

1 | Agricuiture - - -
and allied

activities
2| Industry 311.90 26.55 851% |
3__| Services 410.06 - 0.00% |
Personal 191.65 5.50 2.87% |
Toans :
Sub-total
(B) 913.61 32.05 3.51%
(TX:;'] 1,184.07 178.34 15.06% |
1L a) Movement of Gross NPAs (Rs. in Crores)
Particulars March 31, 2018 ':-Mai'ch 31,'2017
Cpening balance of Gross NPAs 132.14 - 7228
Additions during the year 105.87 771
Sub-total (A) 238.01 i HiEre .}__47..99
Less: R
i.  Upgradations 2.40 _
ii.  Recoveries (excluding recoveries made from upgraded 0.56 | :'.:_ : o 285
accounts) e
ili.  Write-offs 56.72 |- .. 13.00
Sub-total (B) 59.68 | - - - +1585
17833 {0 132,14

losing balance of Gross NPAs (A-B)
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b) (Rs. in Crores)
Particulars March 31,2018 | March 31,2017
Opening balance of Technical/ Prudential written-off 184.35 | e 17253
accounts L
Add: Technical/ Prudential write-offs during the year 56.71 . 13.00.
Sub-total (A) 241.06 | 185,53
Less: Recoveries made from previously technical/ prudential AAs T 18
written-off accounts during the year (B)

Closing balance as at March 31 (A-B) Z236.61 184.35

IV, Overseas Assets, NPAs and Revenue

Particulars

(Rs. in Crores)

March 31, 2018

Total Assets

' Ma_l_*ch 31,2017

Total NPAs

Total Revenue for the vear ended

V. Off-balance sheet SPVs sponsored - NI (P.Y. : NIL)

41. Revaluation of Fixed Assets

The Bank computes depreciation on revalued premises over its estimated remaining useful life and accordingly
an amount of Rs. 0.38 crores have been accounted as depreciation and reduced from the Revaluation Reserve
for the year ended March 31, 2018 (previous year: Rs.0.38 crores).

42. Fixed Assets
No software has been capitalized under fixed assets during the current and previous year.
(Rs. in Crores)

Particulars March 31,2018 | March 31,2017 .
Cost at March 315t of preceding year 3.45 i 345
Additions during the year 0.59 ;- : e e
Deductions during the year - o R
Depreciation to date 3.54 | L 341
Net Block 0.50 |  0.04

43. Provision Coverage Ratio (PCR)
As on March 31, 2018, the Bank has achieved the PCR ratio of 93.98% with reference to Gross NPA as on March
31,2018 (P.Y.: 67.23%).
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44. Disclosure on Remuneration

Qualitative disclosures

(a) Information  relaling  to the
composition and mandate of the
Remuneration Committee.

Not applicable as Remuneration & Nomination Committee
is held at Head Office in Mauritius

{(b) information relating to the design and
structure of remuneration processes and
the key features and objectives of
Remuneration policy.

The Bank follows the following practices and principles in
designing and structuring the remuneration process:-

A focus on long-term, risk-adjusted performance and
reward mechanism by focusing on performance of the
individual employee, the relevant line of business or
function and the Bank as a whole. It seeks to drive
accountability, and co-relate risk, financial performance
and compensation,

Key features and Objective of Remuneration policy are: The
bank shall follow a Cash plus Benefits (Fixed Pay plus
Benefits) approach in its Compensation framework by
providing competitive level of compensation to attract and
retain qualified and competent staff members. The
compensation should be adjusted for all types of risk.

(¢} Description of the ways in which
current and future risks are taken into
account in the remuneration processes. It
should include the nature and type of the
key measures used to take account of these
risks,

SBM has in place a robust risk and performance
management system te capture, monitor, and conirol the
risks created by its business activities, The goal is to not
only manage the risks of the Firm, but also to create a
culture of risk awareness, risk quantification and
measurement and personal accountability. It seeks to
ensure that the potential for any risk-taking by any
individual, group, or business is controlled.

(d) Description of the ways in which the
bank seeks to link performance during a
performance measurement period with
levels of remuneration,

In determining total compensation, it considers the overall
scope of an employee’s responsibilities, the performance
history of the individual with the Bank, comparisons with
other staff within the Firm, external market compensation,
and the overall performance of the function and the Bank
and Group as whole. The Bank looks at sustained superior
performance achieved across multiple factors over multiple
time periods.

{e) A discussion of the bank’s policy on
deferral and vesting of variable
remuneration and a discussion of the bank’s
policy and criteria for adjusting deferred
remuneration before vesting and after
vesting,

The variable/performance pay shall not exceed 70% of the
fixed pay for the year. In case where the variable pay
constitutes a substantial portion of the fixed pay, i.e. 50%
or more, then an appropriate portion of the variable pay, i.e.
around 50% of the variable pay will be deferred over a
minimum period of 3 years. In the event of negative
contributions of the bank in any year, the deferred
compensation will be subject to malus arrangements which
permits the bank to prevent vesting of all or part of the
amount of a deferred remuneration, but it does not reverse
vesting after it has already occurred.

(f) Description of the different forms of
variable remuneration (i.e. cash, shares,
ESOPs and other forms) that the bank

lizes and the rationale for using these
different forms.

There will be a proper balance between the fixed and the
variable pay. The variable pay shall not exceed 70% of the
fixed pay for the year. The proportion of variable pay will be
higher at higher levels of responsibility and could he in cash,
or stock linked instruments or mix of both. .7

s
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Qualitative disclosures
Quantitative disclosures
(The quantitative disclosures should only cover Whole Time Directors / Chief Executive Officer/ Other
Risk Takers)

() Number of meetings held by the | Not applicable as Remuneration & Nomination Committee
Remuneration  Committee during the | is held at Head Office in Mauritius

financial year and remuneration paid to its
members.

(h)
(i) Number of employees having received a | 44 (from Apr 2017 to Mar 2018)
variable remuneration award during the
financial year.

(ii) Number and total amount of sign-on { -
awards made during the financial year.
(1it) Details of guaranteed bonus, if any, paid | -
as joining / sign on bonus
{iv) Details of severance pay, in addition to | -
accrued benefits, if any
(1)

{i) Total amount of outstanding deferred | -
remuneration, split into cash, shares and
share-linked instruments and other forms.
(ii} Total amount of deferred remuneration | -
paid out in the financial year.
(j) Breakdown of amount of remuneration | CEO IOPS for Apr 17to Mar 2018
awards for the financial year to show fixed

and variable, deferred and non-deferred. Particulars {Rs. in Crores)
CEO Pay 1.50
CEQ Variable -
CEO Perquisites 0.01
TOTAL 1.51
(k)

(i) Total amount of outstanding deferred | -
remuneration and retained remuneration
exposed to ex post explicit and / or implicit
adjustments,

(ii) Total amount of reductions during the | -
financial year due to ex- post explicit
adjustments.

(iii} Total amount of reductions during the | -
financial year due to ex- post implicit
adjustments.

45, Accounting for leases

1. Financial lease
Bank has not entered any financial lease in current and previous year.
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2. Operating lease
The lease agreement entered into pertains to use of premises by the branch and residential house. There are no
sub-lease arrangements,

(Rs.in Crores )

“Particulars ' March 31, Maii*ch 31'
2018 2017
1 Total future minimum lease payments as at year end: 0.78 0,53
- Not later than one year 029 [+ 010
- Later than one year but not later than five years 049 1 5 0.43
- Later than five years - o -
2 Lease payments recognised in the Profit and Loss Account in Schedule 16. 012 [ 024

46. Credit Default Swaps
The Bank does not have any Credit Default Swaps during the F.Y.2017-18. (P.Y.: NIL)

47. Intra-Group Exposures

In terms of RBI circular DBOD.No.BP.BC.96/21.06.102/2013-14 dated 11 February 2014, the disclosures on
intra-group exposures are as below:

(R.s in Crures)

Sr. No. | Particulars March 31,2018 |
1 | Total amount of intra-group exposures -

2 | Total amount of top-20 intra-group exposures -

Percentage of intra-group exposures to total exposure of
3 | the bank on borrowers/customers -

Details of breach of limits on intra-group exposures and y -
4 | regulatory action thereon, if any. - b -
During the year ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, the intra-group exposures were within the limits
specified by RBL

48. Transfers to Depositor Education and Awareness Fund (DEAF)

In terms of RBI circular DBOD.No.BP.BC.N0.8/21.04.018/2014-15 dated 1 July 2014 on disclosures on DEAF

are as below:
{Rs. in Crores)

Particulars March 31,2018 March 31,2017

Opening balance of amounts transferred to DEAF 0.29 |- - 0,18
Add : Amounts transferred to DEAF during the year 0.0 | Lo 012
Less : Amounts reimbursed by DEAF towards claims 0.00 [~ © 001
Closing balance of amounts transferred to DEAF 030 [ 0 0.29

49. The Bank is in advanced testing phase for the Technology Transformation Project Phase 1 with rollout of
Finacle Core banking solution including Finacle Treasury and Finacle Internet/Mobile Banking solutions.

The upcoming data center setup for this deployment will have comprehensive IT security and monitoring
controls to ensure defense, resilience and assurance of systems to customers and stakeholders. Bank also
periodically reviews and enforces the policies related to Information Technology Governance, Information
_..security, IT Operations, IT services outsourcing, IS Audit, Cyber Security controls for frauds aud Busmess
’._\'.'_‘-Contmulty Planning to strengthen the IT infrastructure. &
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50. Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure

The Bank closely monitors the unhedged foreign currency exposures of its corporate clients and also factors
this risk into the pricing. The information on the unhedged foreign currency exposures of the corporate is
obtained on a quarterly basis and riskiness of the same with respect to the USD - INR exchange rate fluctuation
Is assessed.

The Bank addresses the currency induced credit risk in a comprehensive manner and the incremental
provisioning and capital held by the Bank on account of the same as on 31-March-2018 is as follows:

Incremental Capital maintained by the Bank on account of unhedged foreign currency exposure is NiL {(P.Y.
NIL)

Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure provisions for current year:
(Rs. in Crores)

Incremental standard assct provision required as Incremental standard
per RBI guideline Outstanding as on | advance provision
March 31, 2018 as on March 31, 2018
0 bps 1,005.74 -

20 bps - .
40 bps - -
60 bps - .
80 bps - -

Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure provisions for previous year:

(Rs. in Crores)

Incremental standard asset provision required as | ' T ‘in e - tal standard
per RBI guideline R SpeE s :

0 bps

20 bps
40 bps
60 bps : i
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51. Liquidity Coverage Ratio
FY.2017-18

{Rs. in Crores)

31 March 2018

.31 Pecember 2017

30 Seplewmbey 2017

30 Juste 2017

Total Un
weighted
Value
(average}

Total
Weighted
Value
(average}

Total Un
weighted
Value
{average)

Total
Weighted
Vatue
(average)

Total Un
weighted
Value
{average)

Total
Weighted
Value
{average)

Total Un Total
weighted | Weighted
Value Value
{average) | (average)

High

Quality Liquid Assets

1

Total High Quality
Liquid Assets (HQLA)

Cash

Outflows

402,25

321.79

381.00

335.77

Retail deposits and
deposits from small
business customenrs, of
which:

{)

Stahle deposits**

2,01

0.10

579 0.29

{iny

Less stable deposits

314.11

3141

Unsecured wholesale
funding, of which;

34491

3449

43487

43.49

301.13 30.11

(i)

Operational duposits (all
counterpasties)

(i)

Nos-operational
deposits (all
counterpariies)

3144

229.83

183.39

242.10

184.80 114.67

(i)

Unsecured debt

Secured wholesale
funding

v

Additional
requirements, of which

(i)

Qutflows related to
derivative exposures
and other

17.69

17.69

5.37

4.81

481

2.46 246

(i)

Outfiows related to loss
of funding on debt
products

19.91

22,37

179.70

42,65

151.22 18.79

(if)

Credit and liquidity
facilities

Other contractual
funding obligations

80.49

80.49

76.02

76,002

72.28

72.28

7034 70.34

Other contingent
funding obligations

8

TOTAL CASH
OUTFLOWS

Cash

Inflows

210,32

6.31

431.26

189.18

5.68

327.32

150.15

4.50

363.58

72.04 2.16

238.82

9

Secured lending {e.g.
reverse repos)

99.81

241.45

212.02

10

Inflows from fully
performing exposures

24.37

24.37

7.26

7.26

5.01

5.01

0.07 0.07

11

Other cash inflows *

132.24

72.21

133.30

74.49

138.40

82.05

125,66 79.28

12

TOTAL CASH INFL.OWS

13

TOTAL HQLA

14

TOTAL NET CASH
OUTFLOWS

15

LIQUIDITY COVERAGE

RATIO (%)

*In Other Cash Inflow at 100% run

rmat of. N otes to Accounts.

312.56

96.58
402.25

334.68

120.19

240.37

81.75

321.79
243.57

131.04

384.86

87.06
381.00

276,52

137.78

337.75 79.35

335.77
159.48

210.54

off factor, Bank has included inflows by Retail and small business
counterparties which is coming under 50% run off factor as there is no heading available for the same in the
P
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** The Bank has considered the entire Retail deposit and deposit from small business customer under Less
Stable w.e.f 18 October 2017 as per RBI's Risk Assessment Report {RAR} conducted for FY 2016-17.

PY.2016-17

{Rs. in Crores)

31 March 2017

31 December 2016

30 September 2016

30 June 2016

Totat
Weighted
Value
{average)

Total Un
weighted
Value
{average)

Total
Weighted
Value
(average)

Total Un
weighted
Value
{(average)

Totat Un
weighted
Value
(average)

Total
Weighted
Value
(average)

Total
Weighted
Value
(average)

Total Un
weighted
Value
{average)

High Quality Liguid Assets

1

Total iigh Quality
Liquid Assets (HQLA)

237.05

Cash Qutfiows

142.08

A4

Retail deposits and
deposits from small
business customers, of
which:

O
(i)

Stable deposits

5.81 0.29

5.46 0,27

5.09 0.25

5.03 126

Less stable deposits

33R50 33.86

354.87

31.12

338.07 3391

Unsecured wholesale
funding, of whicl:

3548

31127

0]

Operational deposits
(all counterparties)

(i)

Non-operational
deposits (alf
counterparties)

84.61 33.85

73.01 29.20

1741

42.15 1680

(i)

Unsecured debt

88.96

Secured wholesale
funding

88.96

%3]

Additional
requirements, of which

81.57

8157

49,78

49,78

45.03 45.03

()

Qutflows related to
derivative exposures
and other

0.15 0.15

(i)

Dutfiows related to
loss of funding on debt
products

(iii)

Credit and liquidity
facilities

116.20 14.50

95.98 11.54

83,71 13.64

163.58 18.18

Other centractual
funding obligations

3612 36.12

54.55 54.55

68.63 68.63

22.07 22.07

Other contingent
funding obligations

74.97 3.75

8

TOTAL CASH
QUTELOWS

211.33

Cash Inflows

83.07 249

215.10

84.55 2.53

183.36

6115 1.83

138.26

9

Secured lending (e.g.
reverse repos}

161.36

124,33 -

80.67 -

24.00 -

10

Inflows from fully
performing exposures

108.67 75.56

5793 38.94

39.67 27.34

39.05 19.52

11

Other cash inflows

64.39

48.88

139.53 85.66

181.82 109.87

147.32 107.14

iz

TOTAL CASH
INFLOWS

124.44

334.42

13

TOTAL HQLA

14

TOTAL NET CASH
OUTFLOWS

86.89

15

LIQUIDITY
COVERAGE RATIO

272.82

(%)

321.79 124.60

302,16 137.21

21037 126.66
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SCHEDULE FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2018
Qualitative disclosure

The Reserve Bank of India has prescribed monitoring of sufficiency of Bank’s liquid assets using Basel i} -
Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR}. The LCR is aimed at measuring and promoting short-term resilience of Banks
to potential liquidity disruptions by cnsuring maintenance of sufficient high qualily liguid assels (HQLAS) to
survive an acute stress scenario lasting for 30 days,

The LCR requirement has been introduced in a phased manner with banks required to maintain minimum LCR
of 70% till Dec 2016 and the 80% from Jan 2017 onwards. The requirement will be increasing by 10% annually
to 100% by Jan 2019,

The ratio comprises of high quality liquid assets (HQLAs) as numerator and net cash outflows in 30 days as
denominator. HQLA has been divided into two parts i.e. Level 1 HQLA which comprises of primarily cash, excess
CRR, excess SLR and a portion of mandatory SLR as permitted by RBI (under MSF and FALLCR). Cash outflows
are calculated by multiplying the outstanding balances of various categories or types of liabilities by the outflow
run-off rates and cash inflows are calculated by multiplying the outstanding balances of various categories of
contractual receivables by the rates al which they are expected to flow in.

52. Capital Commitment
Capital Commitment outstanding as on March 31, 2018 amounts to Rs. 0.30 crores. (P.Y. : Rs. 0.08)

53. RBI vide its circular dated 18th April 2017, has directed banks shall make suitable disclosures, wherever
either (a) the additional provisioning requirements assessed by RBI exceed 15 percent of the published net
profits after tax for the reference period or (b) the additional Gross NPAs identified by RBI exceed 15 percent of
the published incremental Gross NPAs for the reference period, or both. There has been no divergence as there
was no RBI inspection held for the financial year 2016-17 in respect of the Bank’s asset classification and
provisioning under the extant prudential norms on income recognition asset classification and provisioning
(IRACP) which require such disclosures.

54. Other expenditure:
Details of expenses included in Other Expenditure in Schedule 16, exceeding 1% of the total income are set out

below: {Rs. in Crores)
For the year
For the year ended
ended 31st March 31st March 2017
2018
Other IT expenses 4.82 8.01

55. Priority sector lending certificates

The amount of PSLCs {category wise) sold and purchase during the year:
(Rs. in Crores)

Sr. No. Type of PSLCs Purchase Sale
1 PSLC - Agriculture - -
2 PSLC -SF / MF - -
3 PSLC - Micro Enterprises - -
4 PSLC - General -

TOTAL - -
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SCHEDULE FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

56, Fraud:
{Rs. in Crores)
N Particulars March 31,2018 | March 31,2017
Number of frauds reported 3
Amount involved in frauds 83.92 -

Provision made - .

Unamaortised provision debited from ‘other reserves’ - -

57. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / reclassified, wherever considered necessary, in order to
make them comparable with figures for the current year.

For §. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For SBM Bank (Mauritius) Ltd.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

S&J’T\/C"S )'\ wt’—'ﬂ‘ l? -

per Sarvesh Warty
Partner
Membership No. 121411

"
CEO - Indian Operations

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 27,2018
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Basel HI - Pillar 3 disclosures for the year ended 315t March 2018
Scope of Application
Qualitative Disclosures:

(a) SBM Bank (Mauritius) Ltd was incorporated in Mauritius in 1973. The Indian Operations of
the SBM Bank (Mauritius) Ltd (“hereinafter referred to as the ‘Bank’} operates in commercial
banking and as a foreign branch of the SBM Bank (Mauritius) Ltd. The information provided
in this statement is consolidated for the Dank’s operations in India.

Quantitative Disclosures:

: Not Applicable

{b) The aggregate amount of capital deficiencies in subsidiaries
: Not Applicable

{c) The aggregate amount of the bank’s total interests in insurance entitles
Capital Structure:
Qualitative Disclosures:
fa) Summary information and main features of capital instruments are given below.
Tier I capital comprises of funds from Head Office for the purpose of meeting capital adequacy norms,
statutory reserves, Capital Reserves and retained earnings. The deduction to the total capital pertains to

deferred tax assets.

Tier Il capital comprises of general loan loss provisions, country risk provision and revaluation reserve.

(h) The details of tier | capital with separate disclosures of each component is as follows:
{Rs.in Crores)
Particulars Mar-18 Mar-17

Funds from Head Office 508.97 508.97
Statutory reserve 35,99 35.99
Capital Reserve 5.81 5.80
Deferred Tax assets - -
Intangibie Assets (188.44) (83.71)
Total- Tier 1 362.33 467,05
Provision for Standard assets 4.45 3.18
Property Revaluation Reserve 6.41 6.58
Country risk provision - 012
Total - Tier 10.86 9.88
Total eligible capital 373.19 476,93

Capital Adequacy:

Qualitative disclosures

(a)

Bank's approach to assessing the adequacy:

The Bank’s policy is to maintain a strong capital to maintain confidence of depositors.
sustain future business developments. -
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The banl is fully committed to implementing the Basel 11l as adopted by the Reserve Bank of India and
cwrently follows Standardised approach for credit and market risk and Basic Indicator approach for
operational risk.

Quantitative disclosures:

{a)to (e) Capital requirement for credit, market and operational risk and Tier I capital ratio.

The details of capital, risk weighted assets and capital adequacy ratio as at 31 March 2018 are as follows:
(Rs. in Crures

Mar - 18 Mar-17
(As per Basel III) (As per Basel 11I)

PARTICULARS AMOUNT AMOUNT
A Capital requirement for credit

risk

- Portfolios subject to 118.27 119.36

standardised approach &

securitisation exposures
B Capital requirement for

market risk

Standardised duration

approach

- Interest rate risk 23.02 7.68

- Foreign exchange risk 0.22 0.04

- Equity risk - 271
C Capital requirement for

operational risk

-Basic indicator approach 8.06 9.20
D Capital Adequacy ratio of the 24.72% 33.84%

Bank (%)
E Tier CRAR (%) 24.00% 33.14%

Risk Exposure and Assessment

General qualitative disclosure on risk area, risk management objective policies and processes etc:
The Bank has identified the following risks as material to its nature of operations:
» Credit Risk

Market Risk

Operational Risk

Liguidity Risk

Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book

yvyvyy
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Risk Management framework

Overview
The Bank's risk management framework is embedded in the business through the different levels
supported by an appropriate level of investment in information technology and its people.

Credit Risk

The Bank has a comprehensive credit risk framework to manage Credit Risk, in a uniform and consistent

manner.

» Bank maintains independence and integrity of credit decision-making, credit under working function is
segregated from loan origination.

» Bank adheres to the RBI prudential requirements with respect to lending norms..

» All credit proposals are analysed through borrower's historical financial statements and projections,
which includes a thorough review of traditional methods of ratio analysis, evaluation of asset
conversion cycle, balance sheet structure fliquidity, capitalization, and maturity schedule of liabilities},
cash flow and FX exposure,

» As a matter of policy, all credit facilities are reviewed / renewed annually. An account would be
classified as NPA based on RBI guidelines.

Credit risk: General disclosures
Qualitative Disclosures

{a) Credit quality of Loans and Advances

All loans and advances in the Bank are classified according to asset quality, nature and number of days in
arrears in accordance with RBI guidelines. For accounting purposes, definition of RBI for past due and
impaired assets are adopted. Standard accounts include all facilities which demonstrate good financial
condition, minimum risk factors and capacity to repay in line with the original terms of sanction.

Non-Performing Assets

Non-performing assets are those loans for which the Bank determines that it is probable that it will be
unable to collect all principal and interest due according to the contractual terms. During the financial
year 2017 - 18 bank has non-performing assets, net off provision (Gross NPA less Provision), amounting
to Rs. 10.74 Crores (P.Y. Rs. 43.30Crores).

The Bank has adepted the Standardised Approach under Basel I1] for credit risk for Financial Year 2017-
18.

“.
(b) Total Gross credit risk exposures including Geographic Distribution of Exposure

{Rs.in Crores) Mar - 18 Mar-18 | Mar-18 Mar - 17 Mar-17 . Mar-17
Particulars Domestic | Overseas Total Domestic Overseas Total
Fund Based 1302.60 10.00 1,312.60 981.87 409.69 1,391.56
Non Fund 420,78 034 | 42112 53.77 67.20 120.97
Based
Total 1,723.38 10.34 | 1,733.72 1,035.64 476.89 1,512.53
Residual Contractual maturity break dewn of Assets
{Rs. in Crores)
Cash
MATURITY balances Investment Loans and i:?c?llx?i];r?s;?: d
BUCKETS with RBland | Securities Advances assegts {’@ex A
other Banks %l\,f‘“ W”“”\i\. \
v AT M
Next Day 1.10 49.73 5.96 3.86 *”{jg\‘:;.c_; X ()
."‘{'E\\
3 i \ﬁ‘\smw e
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2107 Days 0.82 : 12.79 3.86
87014 Days 1.35 19.94 8.8 3.86
fry

15 to 28 days 0.57 i 58.57 _
29 days to 3
months 12.98 18.01 48.79 -
Over 3 months
upto 6 months 5.98 78.02 51.47 -
over 6 months
upto 12 months 25.50 160.77 182.25 3.86
Over 1 yearto 3
years 4.82 25.28 436.07 -
Over 3yearsto 5
years 0.37 34.09 105.61 -

[y -
Over 5 years . 80.26 106.08 64.36
Total 53.49 466.10 1016.47 79.80

Movement of NPA's and Provision for NPA’s

Gross NPAs in various categories (Sub-standard, doubtful, loss etc):

(Rs. in Crores)
Mar ~ 18 Mar - 17

A | Amount of NPA's (Gross)} 178.33 132.14
B | Net NPA's 10.73 43.30
C | NPA'sratios

Gross NPAs to gross advances (%) 15.06 16.12

Net NPAs to net advances (%) 1.06 5.92
D ; Movement of NPA's

Opening Balance as on 1st Apr 132.14 72.28

Additions 105.87 7571

Reductions 59.68 15.85

Closing balance as on 31st Mar 178.33 132.14
E | Movement of Provision for NPA's

Opening Balance as on 1st Apr 88.84 41.21

Provision made during the year 135.83 54.70

Write offs 57.07 7.07

Write back of excess provision

Closing balance as on 31st Mar 167.60 88.84
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Credit Risk: Portfolios under the standardised approach:
Qualitative Disclosures:

* The Bank is using Credit Risk Assessment of ICRA, CRISIL, FITCH and CARE for the purpose of

arriving at risk weight age wherever available.
¢ Rating is accepted only if our exposure is included in the rating,

Quantitative Disclosures:

The exposure under each credit risk category is as follows:
(Rs.in Crores

Mar - 18 Mar - 17
Risk Bucket Amount Amount
Below 1009% Risk Weight 1,824.07 1,408.07
100% risk weight 638.55 374.99
More than 100% risk 142.30 277.53
weight
Total 2,604.92 2,060.59

Credit Risk Mitigation: Disclosures for standardised approaches

Qualitative Disclosures:

It is the policy of the bank to request for pari passu charge on current assets/movable fixed
assets/immovable assets for corporate credits, unless the business case warrants unsecured lending.
Security is recognized only as a fallback option and repayment of facilities are primarily sought from the
cash flow of the borrower’s business. Collateral security is an important comfort to mitigate risk. Bank
insists on proper valuation of collateral security wherever stipulated.

Quantitative Disclosures

The total value of eligible Cash collateral (Fixed Deposits held under Lien) for credit risk portfolio is Rs.
198.28 Crores.

Securitisation: disclosure for standardised approach

Qualitative and Quantities disclosures:

The bank had securitized NPA assets (Marg Ltd) through Pegasus Assets Reconstruction Pvt. Ltd. and
subscribed to Security Receipts to the tune of INR 17.66 crores issued by the Asset Reconstruction
Company. Bank securitized the NPA asset of Arch Pharma and subscribed to the Security Receipt to the
tune of INR 2.42 crores issued by M Asset Reconstruction Company Ltd. Bank securitized the NPA asset
of Core Education and subscribed to the Security Receipt to the tune of INR 2.25 crores issued by Rare
ARC Pvt Ltd

Market risks in the trading book

Qualitative disclosures

Market Risk

It is the risk of losses arising from changes in market rates or prices that can affect the value of financial
PRET L

instruments. In the Bank all Market Risk is centralized in the dealing room. Market Risk is t;,;a\tgkt:

e

measured on a dynamic basis by a dedicated Market Risk desk and periodic reports are l*(t(l.tfagedl.‘b“k

T WO Y
il R TEA

1 vl -
senior management. A
ey A
e’fﬂ:;




SBM BANK (MAURITIUS) LIMITED
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Market Risk Organization Structure at the Bank

Bank’s Risk Management is controlled at the Head Office in Mauritius. The Risk Management Committec
at Head Office approves risk tolerance and appetite for market risk on the recommendation of Indian
Operations, It also monitors and reviews significant risks and effectiveness of processes and sels out
management responsibilities. Local Risk Management unit supports Risk Committee, which formulates
and implements the market risk policies, and operational plans and recommends changes to policies,
processes and parameters for approval of Risk Management Committee.

Markel Risk Limit Structure at the Banlk

Market Risk limits represents strategic restrictions, reflecting the risk tolerance of the Bank, the nature of
the trading activities and the perceived trading and management skills. The limit setting is to prevent the
accumulation of Market Risk beyond the Bank's risk tolerance level, as determined by the Bank's top
management, and to reflect mandates of individual trading units. Market Risk limits are set in a top-down
process and organized in a certain hierarchy.

The Bank calculates the risk charge on market risk on the basis of standardized approach as prescribed
by RBI. The portfolio contains foreign exchange and interest rate risk only. The interest rate general risk
is computed on the basis of duration based approach.

The capital requirements for market risk are as follows:

5

(Rs. in Crores

Mar-18 Mar-17

Interest Rate Risk 23.02 7.68
Equity position risk - 2.71
Foreign Exchange risk 0.22 0.04
Total 23.24 10.43

Operational Risk:
Qualitative disclosures: The approaches for operational risk capital assessment

The Bank's Operational Risk Management framework includes the identification, assessment,
measurement and monitoring & oversight of operational risks within the Bank.

Indian Operations currently follow Head Office policies for Operational Risk Management.

The Bank has a commitment to meeting high ethical and Operational Risk Management standards in the
way it conducts its business. The governing principles and fundamental components of the Bank's
operational risk management approach include accountability in the individual business lines for
management and control of the significant operational risks to which they are exposed.

An effective organization structure through which operational risk is managed including:

» A Board of Directors responsible for sound corporate governance.

» Separation of duties between key functions.

» An independent internal audit department responsible for verifying that significant risks are
identified and assessed and for determining whether appropriate controls are in place to ensure
that overall risks are at an acceptable level.

» Risk mitigation programs, which use insurance policies to transfer the risk of high severity losses
e.g. cash, where feasible and appropriate

» Business Continuity Plan Business Disruption of key business services for an extended period of
time can affect the Bank's image/downfall, unless appropriate emergency response and business
resumption strategies are maintained

As permitted by RBI, the Bank presently follows the Basic Indicator Approach for as
requirement for computing capital charge for Operational Risk.

6
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Liquidity Risk

Liquidity Risk is the risk that the Bank is not able to fulfil its actual and potential financial obligations, as
and when they are due, without incurring unacceptable losses, The Different dimensions of liquidity risks
are (i) Funding risk - need to replace net outflows due to unanticipated withdrawal/non-renewal of
deposits {wholesale / retail) (ii) Time risk - need to compensate for non-receipt of expected inflows of
funds, for example, performing assets turning into non-performing assets and (jii) Call Risk - due to
crystallization of contingent liabilities and unable to undertake profitable business opportunities when
desirable, The Bank has a liquidity risk management policy in place, which acts as the principal document
for management of liquidity risk.

Liguidity Risk Organization Structure

The ultimate responsibility for the Liquidity Risk of the Bank lies with the Asset & Liability Committee
{ALCO). ALCO meets monthly and monitors the funding and liquidity position of the Bank and provides
structural guidance and oversight. The bank prepares and analyzes the structural liquidity statement
reports as per RBI defined time buckets. The Bank has put in place liguidity mitigants such as call
borrowings.

Interest rate risk in the banking book (IRRBB)
Qualitative Disclosures
Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book

Interest Rate risk in Banking Book (IRRBB) refers to the risk of loss in earnings or economic value of the
Bank's Banking Book as a consequence of movement in interest rates. Interest rate risk arises from
holding assets/liabilities and Off-Balance Sheet [OBS}] items with different principal amount, maturity
dates or re-pricing dates thereby creating exposure to changes in levels of interest rates.

IRRBB Organization Structure

Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO) ensures compliance with regulatory and internal policies related to
IRRBB and provides strategic direction, for achieving IRRBB management objectives. The ALCO focuses
on building streng interest rate indicators, which positively contributes to optimizing the balance sheet
structure and maximizes NII over time, while minimizing susceptibility to interest changes. The ALCO is
convened regularly to review interest rate risk in the Bank's balance sheet and to assess the market
condition.

Quantitative Disclosures

The impact of an incremental 200 basis points parallel fall or rise in all yield curves at the beginning of
the year on net interest income for the next 12 months {EAR) amounts to Rs.3.49 Crores.

CEO - Indian Operations

Place: Mumbai
Date : June 27,2018
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Bascl 10 - Pillar 3 disclosures for the year ended 31st March 2018

Table DE-11 : Composition of Capital

Part It : Template to be used only from March 31, 2017
{i.¢. during the transition period of Basel I regulatory adjustments}

(Rs. in miilion

Amounts Subject

Particulars to Pre-Basel 1Tk Ref
No.
Treatment
Commuon Equity Tier 1 capital: instriments and reserves
1 Directly issued qualifying common share capital plus related stock surplus {share premium) 4,769.58
2 Retained earninps 320,10
3 Accutnduted other comprehensive income (and othet feserves) 417.93
4 Rirecily {sswed capital subject to phase.out from CETI (only applicable 1o son fointstock companicst) ;
Pubtic sector capital injections grandlathered untif January 1, 2018
5 Common share capital issued by subsidiaries and held by thivd parties (amount allowed in group CET1)
[} Common Equity Tier 1 capital before regulatory adiustments 5,507.61
Common Equity Tier 1 capital : regulatory adinstiments
7 Prudential valuation adjustments
8 Goodwill (not of refated tax Hability)
G Intangibles [(net af refated tax liability) 1,884.40
10 Referred tax assets 2
11 Casli-flow hedge reserve
12 Shortfafl of provisions to expected losses
13 Securitisation gain gn sale
14 Gains and tosses due 10 changes in own credis risk on fair vatued liabilities
15 Defined-benefit pension fund net assets
16 [nvestments in own shares (if not already netted off paid-up capital on reported balance sheet)
17 Reciprocal cross-hoidings in common equity
18 Investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of
regulatory consclidation, net of eligibie short positions, where the bank does not own more than 10% of
the mugg shg; g capita [amount ahove 10% thrcshoid‘;
19 o
20
21 :
liability
22 Amguntexceeding the 159 thresholdg Not relevant
23 of which : significant investments in the common stock of financial entities
24 of which : morigage servicing rights
25 of which : deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences
26 Natiopal specific resuiatory adjustments? (26a+26h+26c+26d) -
26a of which lnvestments in the eqmtv cap;ta] of unconsohdated insurance subqldmries
26b of which : Investy 1 -
26¢ i
consg!'dated with the bank9
26d of which : Ynamortised pension funds expenditures
a7 Regulatory adjustments applied to Common Equity Tier 1 due te insufficient Additional Tier  and Tier 2
to cover deductiong
28 Total regulatory adjustments te Commeon equity Tier 1 1,884.40
29 Common Equity Tier 1 capital {CET1} 3623.21
Additional Tier 1 capital : instruments
30 Directly issued gualifying Additional Tier 1 instruments plus related stock surplus (share premium)
(31+32]
31 of which : classified as equity urder applicable accounting standards {Perpetual Non-Cumulative
Preference Shares}
32 of which : classified as liabilities under applicable accounting standards (Perpetuat debt Instruments)
33 Directly issued capital instruments subject to phase out from Additional Tier 1
34 Additional Tier 1 instruments (and CET1 instruments not included in row 5) issued by subsidiaries and
held by third parties famount aliowed in group AT1}
35 of whicl: : instruments issued by subsidiaries subject to phase gut
36 Additional Tier 1 capital before repulatory adjustments
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Basel 10 - Pillar 3 disclosures for the year ended 31st March 2018

Additional Ti

er 1 capital: repulatory adjustments

37 Investments in own Additional fier 1 instruments
38 Reciprocal cross-boldings in Additional Tier 1 instraments
39 Envestments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance eatities that are outside the stope of
regulatory consolidation, net of eligille short positions, where the bank does not own more thay $0% of
the issued common share capital of the entity (amount above 10% threshold)
46 Sipnificant investments in the capit ; i s s that ave outside the
seone of reguiatory consolidation (net of eligible short pesitions 10
41 Natienal specific regulatory adjustments (la+41b) -
414 tnvostments in the Additional Tier 1 capital of unconseliduled insurmice subsidiaries
41h Shorifall in the Additional Tier 1 capital of majority owned financial entities which hava not been
coungoildated with the bank
42 Regulatory adjustments applied to Additional Tier 1 due to insufficient Tier 2 to cover deductions
43 Total regulatory adjustments to Additional Tier 1 capital .
44 Additional Tier 1 capital {AT1)
45 Tier 1 capital {T1 = CET1 + Admissible AT1) (29 + 44a) 3.623.21
Tier 2 capital : instruments and provisions
46 Directly issued qualifying Tier 2 instruments plus related steck surplus
47 Directly issued capital instruments subject to phase out from Tier 2
48 Tier 2 instruments (and CET1 and AT1 instruments not inciuded in rows 5 or 34) issued by subsidiaries
and held by third parties {famount allowed in group Tler 2}
49 of which : instriuments issued by subsidiaries subject to phase gut
50 Provisiong]? 108.573
51 Tier 2 capital before regulatory adjustments 168.573
Tier 2 capital: repulatory adjustments
52 Investments in own Tier 2 instruments
53 Reciprocat cross-holdings in Tier 2 instruments
54 Investiments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of
repuiatory consolidation, net of eligible short positions, where the bank does not own more than 10% of
the issued common share capital of the entity {amount above the 10% threshold)
55
of regulatery consolidation {net of eligible shart positions)
56 Nationat specific regulatory adjustments [56a+56h) -
56a of which : Investments in the Tier 2 capitaj of unconsolidated insurance subsidiaries
56b of which: Shortfall in the Tier 2 capital of majority owned financial entities which have not been
consolidated with the bank
57 Total regulatory adjustments to Tier 2 capital -
58 T:er 2 capital {T2} 108.573
S8a 2 capital reckened for o | 108.573
58h Excess Additional Tier 1 camta! reckoned as Tier 2 capital
58c Total Tier 2 capital admissible for capital adequacy (582 + 58h) 108573
59 Total capital (TC = T1 + Admissible T2} {45 + 58¢) 3,731.78
60 Total risk weighted assets {60a + 68b + 60c) 15,097.31
b0a of which : total credit risk weighted assets 10,874.96
60b of which : total market risk weighted assets 3,215.39
60¢ of which : total operational risk weighted assets 1,006.96
Capitalratios
61 Common Eguity Tier 1 (as a percentage of risk weiphted assets) 24.00%
62 Tier 1 [as a percentage of risk welghted assets) 24.00%
63 Total capital (as a percentage of risk weighted assets} 24.72%
64 Institution specific buffer requirement (minimum CET1 requirement plus capital conservation plus
countercyclicai buffer requirements plus G-SIB buffer requirement, expressed as a percentage of risk
weighted assets)
45 of which : capital conservation buffer requirement
66 of which : bank specific countercyclical buffer requirement
67 of which : G-SIB buffer reguirement
68 Common Equity Tier 1 available to meet buffers (as a percentage of risk weighted assets) 1.8750%] .- “:‘IT\“




5BM Bank {Mauritius) Ltd.

INDIAN OPERATIONS

Basel 10 - Pillar 3 disclosures for the year ended 31st March 2018

National min

ma (if different from Basel 1)

69 Natlenal Common Equity Tier 1 minimum ratig (if different [rem Basel 11 minimsun} 5.5005
70 National Tier 3 minimum ratio (if differeat from Based 1 minimum) 7.00%
71 National total capital minimum ratio (if different from Basel il minimuim) 9,008
Amounts below the thresholds for deduction (before risk weighting)
72 Non-significant investments in the capital of other financial entities
73 Significant investments in the commaon stock of financiaj entities
74 Mortpage servicing rights {net of related tax liability) NA
75 Deferved tax agsets arlsing from temporary differences (net of related tax liability) NA
Applicable caps on the inclusion of provisions in Tier 2
76 Provisions eligible {or inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of exposures subject to standardised approach (prior
to application of cap)
77 Cap on Inclusion of provisiens in Tier 2 under standirdised approach
78 Provisions eliglble for Incluslon in Tier 2 in regpect of exposures subject te internal ratings-lased
approach {prior to application of cap)
79 Cap Tor incluston of provisions in Tler 2 under internal ratings-based approach
Capital instruments subject to phase-out arrangements (enly applicable between March 31, 2017 and March 31,
80 Current cap on CET] instruments subject to phase out arrangements NA
a1 Amount excluded from CET1 due to cap {excess over cap after redemptions and maturities) NA
82 Current cap on AT1 instruments subject to phase out arrangeiments
B3 Amount excluded from AT due Lo cap [excess over cap after redemptions and maturities)
84 Currvent cap on T2 instruments subject to phase out arrangements
85 Amount excluded from T2 due to cap (excess over cap after redemptions and maturities)
Note to the template
Row No. of Particular Amount
the template
10 Deferred tax assets associated with accumulated losses
Deferred tax assets {excluding those assoclated with accumulated losses) net of Deferred tax liability o
Total as indicated in row i0
19 If investments in insurance subsidiaries are not deducted fully from capitat and instead considered under
10% threshold for deduction, the resultant increase in the capital of bank
of which : Increase in Common Equity Tier 1 capital
of which : Increase in Additional Tier 3 capital
of which : Increase in Tier 2 capital
26b If investments in the equity capital of unconsolidated non-financial subsidiaries ure not deducted and
hence, risk weighted then :
(i) Increase in Common Equity Tier 1 capital
(ii} Increase in risk weighted assets
44a Excess Additional Tier 1 capital ntot reckoned for capital adequacy (difference between Additional Tier 3
capital as reported in row 44 and admissible Additienat Tier 1 capital as reported in 44a})
of which : Excess Additional Tier 1 capital which is considered as Tier 2 capital under row 58b
50 |Eligible Provisions included in Tier 2 capitat 44.90
Eligible Revatuation Reserves inciuded in Tier 2 capital 64.07
108.573

Total of row 50

For SBM BANK {MAURITIUS) LTP

Mr. Siby Sebastian
CEQ - Indian Operations

Place : Mumbai
Date: June 27, 2018




SBM Bank (Mauritins) Ltd,
INDIAN OPERATIONS

Basel 1II - Pillar 3 disclosurcs..' for the year ended 31st March 2018

Table DF-12 : Composition of Capital- Reconciliation Requirements
{Rs. in million}
R Balance sheet under
Balance sheet as in regulatory scope of
Particulars financial statements & ) y . ¢
consolidation
Ason 31-63-2018 Ason 31-03-2618
Capital & Liabilitics
Paid-up Capital 4,769.58 4,769.58
i Rteserves & Surplus (1,003.99) {1,003.99)
' Minority Interest - -
‘Total Capital 3,765.59 3,765.59
Deposits 12,067.67 12,057.67
i, of which ; Deposits from banks 34.02 34.02
of which ; Customer deposits 12,023.65 1202305
A of which : Other deposits [pl. specify) - -
Borrowings 1,303.50 1,303.50
of which : From RBI - -
of which : From banks - -
iii. of which : From other institutions & agencies - -
-
of which : Others (pl. specify} (Borrowings outside India) 1,303.50 1,303.50
of which : Capital instruments - -
iv. Other liabilities & provisions 824.97 824.97
Total Liabilities 17,951.73 17,951.73
Assets
i. Cash and balabces with Reserve Bank of India 534.83 534.83
Balance with banks and money at call and short notice 1,668.37 1,668.37
ii. Investments : 4,661.05 4,661.05
of which : Government securities 3,607.42 3,607.42
of which : Other approved securities - -
of which : Shares - -
of which : Debentures & Bonds 630.80 630.80
of which : Subsidiaries / Joint Ventures / Associates - -
7 of which : Others (Commercial Papers, Mutual Funds etc.)} 422.83 422.83
iii. Loans and advances 10,164.76 10,164.76
of which : Loans and advances to banks 1,794.52 1,794.52
of which : l.oans and advances to customers 8,370.24 8,370.24
iv. Fixed assets 305.86 305.86
v, Other assets 616.86 61686
of which : Goodwill and intangible assets
of which : Deferred tax assets -
vi. Goodwill on consolidation
vil. Debit balance in Profit & Loss account -
Total Assets 17,951.73
For SBM BANK fMAURITIUSIAID,

Mr. Siby Sebastian
CEO - Indian Operatio

Place : Mumbai R
Date: june 27, 2018






